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CORPORATE PROFILE

EEEN

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited is a leading large-scale
industrial group, making building materials and interior decoration
products in mainland China. It is listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (stock name: China Lesso,
stock code: 2128). China Lesso is one of the constituent stocks of
the Hang Seng Composite Index — MidCap and has been covered
by Hong Kong Stock Link, which is tradable under the pilot scheme
of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect. The Group provides over
10,000 kinds of quality products, including plastic pipes and pipe
fittings, sanitary ware products, integrated kitchens, systems of
doors and windows, decorative plates, fire-fighting equipment,
and sanitary materials, etc. They are widely applied to such fields
as interior decoration, water supply, drainage, power supply
and telecommunications, gas transmission, agriculture, floor
heating and fire services. The Group is positioned as one of the
manufacturers who offer the most comprehensive range of building
materials and interior decoration products.

The Group has 20 advanced production bases in 14 regions,
namely Guangdong, Guizhou, Sichuan, Hubei, Jiangsu, Anhui,
Henan, Hebei, Heilongjiang, Jilin, Shaanxi, Xinjiang, Hainan and
Yunnan. The Group has established a nationwide sales network
and has also developed long-term strategic partnerships with 2,000
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors to provide quality
and comprehensive products as well as professional services for
customers.

Qo
Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region
¥
HERBRR

Sichuan
)l ¢
Q Production base 9 Gui
HEEM Yunnan
" . =
ew base under construction
e EM

TEBEEEERARARNETERBLENALR
BMEREXREE RBEABAXZMERA
AERET(RREME  PEBE - RO
2128) - FEB B EE AR A BN R AR
Z—  WHWEMAREBGBRD - BRI RIEE
PRAMAEETEE AKERHAEERERE
HER REZHEBREMER KEEBE
o BRERE  PIERS - BHRY - OBSET
REEMHERR  YEZEANRKERE &
Ko gk BAREREMA  MREX - BA
WIRAE FES - RPEEMRXERHNEMR
EERBEEMEERZ —

AEBPER &M I8 TEF &
B ommE -~ oAde - BEEIL - HAK - BRE - BEE -
BEALERSTOEMEES - TESELEES
e AEEREREE2EN D HMA - #2,000
HMBYBER - REHEAELRBES FH
% REEEPRHBELENERMEXMR
& o

Heilongjiang
L=

Shandong
nan ¥ IUE
E3] Jiangsu
Q L ER

Anhui
&
9, K&

Hub
P

ER

Hainan

95



CONTENTS H &

R

Financial Highlights

Five-year Financial Summary

Chairman’s Statement

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Corporate Governance Report

Management Discussion and Analysis

Directors’ Report

Independent Auditors’ Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Company Statement of Financial Position

Notes to Financial Statements

Glossary

Corporate Information

2

26

37

56

58

60

62

64

66

67

152

155

TFMBHME

THREHEE

EENSMEEABEE

EREARE

DT

ERETH

e

FemE

JB LA BRI

of

@
H

= A5 S
AN Sl

FABHLRER

NGRS e

BA TS RaR P T

Rl

RAEF



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

Increase/
2014 2013 (decrease)
20144 20134  #n,CRd)
(%)
For the year ended 31 December #HZ12H31BLLFE
(RMB’000) (AR¥F )
Revenue WA 14,822,772 13,070,547 13.4
Gross profit EF 3,800,734 3,265,568 16.4
Finance costs BhE Bk AR 233,071 151,003 54.3
EBITDA B BB 4T 48 Bl 22 2,519,644 2,278,852 10.6
Profit before tax MR R BT 5 1,846,793 1,767,511 4.5
Profit for the year FREF 1,540,358 1,437,616 7.1
Profit attributable to owners VIN/NEIEZZS N
of the Company FE(R S F 1,554,024 1,449,261 7.2
At 31 December (RMB’000) R12A31B(AR%F )
Total assets BEMRE 14,519,528 12,297,707 18.1
Cash and bank deposits R RIBITER 3,198,902 2,189,242 46.1
Total debts® B 3,179,834 2,687,116 18.3
Net (cash)/debt® (R&e) (&% FamEe (19,068) 497,874 (103.8)
Total equity T fR 8,549,723 7,255,943 17.8
Share information (RMB) BBHOER(ARYE)
Basic earnings per share® FREKREFC 0.50 0.48 4.2
Diluted earnings per share® TR EE R F© 0.50 0.47 6.4
Proposed final dividend per share #&k &R AR EIIR S
(HK cents) () 13 12 8.3
Equity attributable to owners SN EIN/NEIEZ FEPN
of the Company per share FE(G R 2.75 2.35 17.0
Financial ratios B #§ b =&
Total debts to total capital¥ (%)  (EFGLEFELERLAFEL, KA (%) 27.1 27.0
Net debt to equity® (%) B F R HEas L @ (%) N/A 6.9
Interest cover® (times) FEAF L EO(F) 10.81 15.09
Notes: BEE -
a. Represented total bank loans and other borrowings. a. EIRITER R EMb B R4R%E -
b. Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. b. EEBEERIR S KIRITER °
c. Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the  c. AR SRERNRBERF 2 5T EF N MR M

Company are set out in note 11 to financial statements.

d. Represented total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity.
e. Represented net debt divided by total equity.
f. Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T FIEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
201445 20134 20124 20114 20105
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RESULTS E3 ARET T ARETTT ARETIL ARETT ARETL
REVENUE A 14,822,772 13,070,547 10,891,363 10,143,296 7,711,532
GROSS PROFIT EY ] 3,800,734 3,265,568 2,649,308 2,452,022 2,033,648
EXPENSES* B¢ (1,837,384)  (1,502,919) (1,136,887) (932,845) (650,676)
FINANCE COSTS BERAK (233,071) (151,003) (146,231) (110,536) (52,971)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBL AR 1,846,793 1,767,511 1,482,279 1,556,933 1,373,516
Income tax expense FEHAY (306,435) (329,895) (251,008) (296,237) (241,333)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREA 1,540,358 1,437,616 1,231,271 1,260,696 1,132,183
Profit attributable to: AT ISR F -
Owners of the Company AREHEAEA 1,554,024 1,449,261 1,238,322 1,260,758 1,132,183
Non-controlling interests JEEH R (13,666) (11,645) (7,051) (62) -
1,540,358 1,437,616 1,231,271 1,260,696 1,132,183
At 31 December
M2A318
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
20145 20134 20124 20114 20105
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FINANCIAL POSITION BN ARET R ARETTL ARETIT ARETT ARE
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 7,204,696 5,899,084 4,669,883 3,284,886 2,014,162
Current assets MEEE 7,314,832 6,398,623 5,112,903 4,506,649 3,614,638
Total assets BERE 14,519,528 12,297,707 9,782,786 7,791,535 5,628,800
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEE 2,159,959 1,743,944 1,715,992 1,770,979 216,605
Current liabilities MEAE 3,809,846 3,297,820 2,038,876 1,033,191 1,407,744
Total liabilities BELS 5,969,805 5,041,764 3,754,868 2,804,170 1,624,349
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEERE 3,504,986 3,100,803 3,074,027 3,473,458 2,206,894
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners KREEBA
of the Company iy 8,545,459 7,239,738 6,010,033 4,986,975 4,004,451
Non-controlling interests SIS 4,264 16,205 17,885 390 -
Total equity BREE 8,549,723 7,255,943 6,027,918 4,987,365 4,004,451
o Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative # EEE RS HEAY  THRASIMEMAST AT -

expenses and other expenses.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETRBEE

In 2014, China’'s economy experienced a mild recovery with a
steady growth against the backdrop of the gradual recovery of
the global economy. The PRC government pressed ahead with
urbanisation and construction of hydraulic engineering works
in rural villages, and continued to update the obsolete piping
systems and the infrastructural facilities, including those for water
supply, drainage, power supply and telecommunications. These
developments boosted the demand for pipes, building materials
and interior decoration products. As a leading large-scale industrial
group making building materials and interior decoration products
in mainland China, China Lesso capitalised on the favourable
government policies and the steady demand for pipes by leveraging
its market leadership and brand influence, and thus recorded a
steady growth in its business.

During the year, the Group's businesses made steady progress
in their development and in terms of key performance indicators
despite the uncertainties in both the economy and operating
environments. The improvements met the management’s
expectations. The Group's revenue rose by 13.4% to RMB14,823
million in 2014 from RMB13,071 million in 2013. The gross profit
increased by 16.4% to RMB3,801 million. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company grew by 7.2% to RMB1,554 million. The
Board proposed payment of a final dividend of HK13 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year under review, the Group gradually raised the
automation level of the production facilities of its existing
production bases as planned to further enhance the production
efficiency and to save costs. On the other hand, the Group
increased the production capacity to meet its needs for
development. The production bases in Hainan and Yunnan
successively commenced production, providing solid support to the
future development of the Group’s plastic pipes and pipe fittings
business.

In addition, the Group will continue to develop the business of
building materials and interior decoration products, providing
customers with a complete system of doors and windows, sanitary
ware products and integrated kitchens. The year 2014 marks the
fourth year of the country’s “Twelfth Five-year Plan”. It is believed
that new opportunities will arise in the market for building materials
and interior decoration products as the government speeds up
the construction and renovation of the social security housing, the
redevelopment of shanty areas and renovation of dilapidated rural
housing.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)

TRBEZ @)

Looking ahead to 2015, we expect China’'s economy and its overall
market to maintain the momentum of steady growth. The Group
believes that its business will continue to grow because it will
benefit from the growing demand for plastic pipes and pipe fittings,
building materials and interior decoration products thanks to the
ongoing urbanisation, the updating of such infrastructural facilities
as obsolete pipes, the pilot scheme for managing integrated
subterranean piping systems for the urban areas throughout the
country, the construction of irrigation systems for rural villages,
social security housing and the redevelopment of shanty areas.

In the future, the Group will proactively take advantage of China's
favorable policies and market opportunities by diversifying its
product offerings, actively expanding its nationwide sales network
and enhancing its production capacity. It will continue to develop
the business of building materials and interior decoration products,
and endeavor to fulfill its corporate mission of “Create a Relaxing
Life for Dwellers” by developing itself into a leading large-
scale industrial group that makes building materials and interior
decoration products in the world. The Group will bring better
returns to the Shareholders through pursuing sustainable and
healthy development of its business.

The Group's consistent development hinges on the strong support
from various parties. On behalf of the Board, | would like to
take this opportunity to express our sincere gratitude to all the
employees for their relentless efforts and contribution to the
Group's development in the past year. | would also like to thank all
of the Shareholders, investors, business partners and customers
for their trust and support.

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEBAEBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 52, is the founder of the Group, the
chairman of the Company and was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the Group's overall strategic planning and business management.
Mr. Wong has approximately 18 years of experience in plastic
pipe operations and management. He served as the chairman in
Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to April 1999 and
was awarded “Outstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by
Shunde People’s Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has
been a member of Shunde District, Foshan City Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference since 2003 and
a vice president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber
of Commerce since 2006. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 42, is the chief executive of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor
of various companies in the Group. He is primarily responsible for
the management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr.
Zuo has approximately 15 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in operation management since joining the Group.
Mr. Zuo won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of the
Plastic Industry in the PRC"” by China Plastics Processing Industry
Association in 2009. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 48, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies in the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 18
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.

06 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited & Bl %8 &£ B iG A R A A

BITES

EHELE 5258 0 BAEBAIRAFRADT
FFE 0 R2009F 11 AbBEZ T AL RAIRITE
FEo-RBNARAEBENZHKNERRETESR
e WETEBEASENEEERRIIRERE
B BRERBHERLCEREEIEEREL1S
F4EER o FN19969F 12 A 2199944 A (T )EE
P EENTFE  WHN2003F M ILTHIEER
ARBFFAEEZEFRELER] - HEEB
2003F FHREARBUGHEEHHLMIEERESZ
BEeZ£8 - WH2006FBEFILTIBEREE T
meRlek BEAENAEAXIZEINREBRL R
WL AR -

EmtmdE  425% C BASBEITERER - TR
2010F2 27 R EZERANFINITES - FT
RAEBRZEKEARIETIES RKE &
FRE FIZEEAEEATEBLEEE -
ERAERBREBTERELIGFLR - LiE
R1999F 12 AMMBAREE - BHRKEEBTEAIE
BRAETRBA - LAECEZEEIE - BER
2000 EARBEBR I T ITERSTA [ PEBE
THERETEE] LEEDNEBELENAP
NEZXHZ TR -

RS L - 485% 0 AAEBEFIBAE - WHK2010
FORA27TAEZTAARRRMITESE - HIRAK
EENZHERENREIES EEBE - KT
BEEAEBMNRBEENRERE - AR
BRIEBITERELNI18F LR - LT 51996F
12 AREETIERE L EERNEE - N19994F - &
HEBELE—RKIANEE  HETRNKE
B - AR NEBELEENEB R MR ITE
MR -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 48, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management
of the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 18 years of experience
in the plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999.
Mr. Lai joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 49, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible
for the China's sales of the Group and has approximately 21
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined
the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan
City Dongijian Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January
1999 and served as a manager in the production department of
Shunde Liansu Industrial from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 47, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management of the quality control of
the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 25 years of experience in
the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in December
1999 and has held various positions in production management and
engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology department
at Guangdong Province Zhaoqing Gaojiang Plastic Products Co.,
Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to September
1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in the
production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from September
1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy secretary
general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor degree in polymer chemical from South China University
of Technology in July 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 39, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies in the Group.
Dr. Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development
and overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 12
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the
Group in July 2002 and has held various positions in research and
development and overseas sales since joining the Group. Over the
years, Dr. Lin has won various awards including “National May First
Labor Medal” by All China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr.
Lin received a doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics
from Sun Yat-sen University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 39, is a vice president of the Group and
was appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27
February 2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of
various companies in the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible
for the overall management of the factories and production facilities
of the Group and has approximately 18 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999
and has held various positions in production management since
joining the Group. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as
a deputy factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials
Factory from 1996 until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of
the plastic production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
June 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Huang completed a programme
of marketing from Hubei University of Technology from September
2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 43, was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/supervisor
of various companies in the Group. Mr. Luo has approximately
20 years of experience in accounting and worked at Shunde City
Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996, Guangdong
Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from April 1996 to
December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm from
January 2002 to December 2007. Since January 2008, Mr. Luo
has been working for Foshan City Zhongzhengcheng Accounting
Firm Co., Limited as a certified public accountant. Mr. Luo is a
member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and is currently an independent director of Winowner Group Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 600681), which is listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange. Mr. Luo obtained a bachelor degree in economics from
Guangdong University of Business Studies in June 1993.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

EE=ZNEREEABBRRE @)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 54, was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 27 February 2010. Mr. Lin has approximately
20 years of experience in the legal field and worked as a part-
time lawyer at various PRC law firms between 1995 and 2001.
Since 2001, Mr. Lin had been practising as a lawyer at Guangdong
Everwin Law Office and became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr.
Lin was an arbitrator of the Guangzhou City Arbitration Commission
in 2003.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Bai Chongen, aged 51, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. Dr. Bai
is currently a Mansfield Freeman professor of economics, an
associate dean and chairman of the department of Economics in
the School of Economics and Management of Tsinghua University.
Dr. Bai is a director of the National Institute for Fiscal Studies at
Tsinghua University. Dr. Bai serves as an independent director of
Huarong Securities Co., Ltd., Societe Generale (China) Limited and
New China Trust Co., Ltd.. Dr. Bai had been an independent non-
executive director of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (stock
code: 998), which is listed on the Stock Exchange, from December
2006 to October 2012. Dr. Bai obtained a doctorate degree in
mathematics from University of California, San Diego in September
1988 and a doctorate degree in economics from Harvard University,
US in June 1993.

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, aged 66, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010.
Mr. Fung is currently practising as a sole proprietor in the name
of P C Fung & Company, a certified public accountants firm. Mr.
Fung is a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of
both The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada. Mr.
Fung obtained a master degree in arts from Antioch University,
US in March 1987. Mr. Fung is currently an independent non-
executive director and a member of the audit committee of Vantage
International (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 15), which is listed
on the Stock Exchange. He is a member of the Hong Kong Inland
Revenue Department’s Users’ Committee.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 41, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of
the High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal
litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and
a bachelor degree in law from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate certificate in
laws from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Mr. Cheung Man Yu, aged 40, was appointed as an independent
non- executive director and a member of the audit committee
of the Company on 31 December 2012. Mr. Cheung obtained
a bachelor degree in arts with major in accountancy from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung has over
16 years of experience in financial management and financial
services. Mr. Cheung is currently the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Feiyu Technology International Company
Ltd. (stock code: 1022), which listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr.
Cheung was employed at the audit department of Ernst & Young,
an international accounting firm, from 2000 to 2004. Mr. Cheung
had been a vice president or director at the respective investment
banking division of BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited, UBS
AG and J.P. Morgan securities (Asia Pacific) Limited from 2004 to
2011. From 2011 to 2012, Mr. Cheung was a vice president of a
company which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 39, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director and a member of the nomination committee of
the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan has been the President
of Guangdong Construction and Decoration Materials Association
since March 2008 and the President of Guangdong Construction and
Decoration Design Association since August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated
from Guangdong University of Technology with a college diploma in
June 1996 and then pursued further studies in the EMBA CEO training
program of Sun Yat-sen University and the business management
CEO training program of Tsinghua University. She worked as a
chairman of the materials committee of Guangzhou Architecture &
Decoration Association from February 1998 to October 2006. As of
the date herein, Ms. Lan has accumulated over 17 years of experience
with respect to the administration of social organisations and the
industry of construction and decoration materials.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 33, is a chief financial officer of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s overall financial and accounting
affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this,
he worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-
branch manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China,
Foshan Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu
completed a diploma in finance from Southwestern University of
Finance and Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at
Guangdong University of Business Studies from March 2007 to
January 2010. As well as obtaining a master degree in engineering
from Chongging University upon the completion of courses for
the master degree in software engineering (specialised in financial
informatisation) in June 2014. He is an associate member of the
Association of International Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 37, is a company secretary of
the Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 10 years of experience
in accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group
in June 2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants
from March 2000 to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers
from November 2004 to October 2007 and Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from November 2007 to September 2009. The latter
two firms are amongst the biggest international accounting firms.
Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor degree in Commerce from
Deakin University of Australia in September 2000 and obtained a
master degree in business administration from University of South
Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member of the CPA
Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TERERHRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices and business ethics of the
Group. The Board believes in good corporate governance practices
and business ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable
development, establishing investors’ confidence in the Company
and safeguarding and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standard of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices
of the Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations
of the Shareholders for continual improvement, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment of pursuing excellent corporate governance. In
the opinion of the directors, the Company complied with all the
applicable code provisions of the Code during the year.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to
other specific senior management officers of the Company. The
directors and chief executive's interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on
page 41.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 9 executive
directors, 1 non-executive director and 5 independent non-
executive directors. Up to the date of this report, Mr. Gao Lixin has
resigned as an independent non-executive director and a member
of the nomination committee of the Company; and Ms. Lan Fang
has been appointed as an independent non-executive director and
a member of the nomination committee of the Company, all with
effect from 1 January 2015.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing directors shall hold office only until the next
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. In addition, at every annual general
meeting of the Company, not less than one-third of the directors
for the time being shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Apart from retirement by rotation pursuant
to the Articles, each non-executive director has a term of within
three years. Therefore, no director will remain in office for a term
of more than three years. If there exists any relationship among the
members of the Board, including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship, the disclosure has been published in
the sections headed “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” and “Directors and Chief Executive’'s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of
the Directors’ Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong
Luen Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important
duties of the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board
always acts in the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall
ensure the effective operation of the Board and fully perform his/
her duties and ensure all important issues are discussed at Board
meetings in a timely manner. All directors will be consulted for any
proposed items in the agenda. The chairman has delegated the
drafting of the agenda of each Board meeting to the chief executive
and the company secretary. With the assistance of the chief
executive and the company secretary, the chairman aims to ensure
all directors are adequately briefed on any issues being put forward
at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and reliable information in
a timely manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide various expertise and
experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in
Board meetings and committee meetings and make independent
judgements on issues related to the Group's strategies,
performance, interest conflicts and management process so as to
ensure the interests of all Shareholders are properly considered.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmations made by each of
the independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded
all independent non-executive directors as independent parties in
accordance with the terms of the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board
exercises its rights in management decision on the aspects of
the Company’s development strategy, management structure,
investment and financing, planning, financial control and personnel
in accordance with the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company's
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six
months ended 30 June 2014 and to audit the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2014. The directors of the Company
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the annual report and the interim report. In preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014, the
directors have selected and applied appropriate accounting policies
and have made prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 56 to 57.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance
duties including:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(e) to review the Company’'s compliance with Appendix 14 to

the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report).
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board convened
eight meetings to review operating performance and funding
requirement, recent market conditions. The Board also considered
and approved the Group's overall strategy, audited annual results
for the year ended 31 December 2013 and reviewed interim results
for the six months ended 30 June 2014.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee, attended the AGM of the Company held on 30 May
2014.

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the
Board at the meetings held in 2014

BEE2EERRRAE
HE2014F12831HIEFE B2 HHANX
CHE - UEMELERE BEEREHKETN -
%%Aﬁa%ﬁ%u%tt&ﬁ%lz& LHERS - BE
2013F 12 A3 BEFENEEZEFTEENE
F2014F6 A30H LN E AR HIZLE -

%?*‘IJ*&%V?%@ CRELZEGRFMNE
eMEFEHELRFEAARN2014F5 308 £
ﬁmﬂx%ﬂik o

TREF2014FESTSEHENHESHIBN

Meetings attended/eligible to attend
HERE AERERENRE

Audit Nomination Remuneration
AGM Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors E= BRRBEAS EEXg EREZE" REZE® FMHEES
Executive directors HITESE
Wong Luen Hei == 171 8/8 - 1/1 1/1
Zuo Manlun m e 11 8/8 - 11 171
Zuo Xiaoping T 171 5/8 - - -
Lai Zhigiang e 171 8/8 - - -
Kong Zhaocong fLkEE 1/ 8/8 - - -
Chen Guonan BREIR 1/1 8/8 - - -
Lin Shaoquan wz m 8/8 - - -
Huang Guirong BEEE 11 7/8 - - -
Luo Jianfeng prgE S 11 8/8 - - -
Non-executive director FHITES
Lin Dewei wiEeE Al 8/8 2/2 - -
Independent
non-executive directors BIFHITES
Bai Chongen BEA 1/1 7/8 - 1/1 1/1
Fung Pui Cheung HBEE 1/1 8/8 1/2 11 11
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan ~ FE% 11 6/8 1/2 1N 1N
Cheung Man Yu RXF 11 8/8 2/2 = =
Lan Fang® B0l - = - - -
Gao Lixin® S i 11 7/8 - 11 -
Notes: FI5E -
(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of  (a) *E})‘"i%ifﬁg‘ﬁﬁﬂ& EXH0HY  BREFEIEME
video conference in accordance with the Articles. BERETHERS -
(b) Director who was appointed with effect from 1 January 2015. (b) R2016F 1A AEZTAES -
(c) Director who resigned with effect from 1 January 2015. (c) MW2015F1 A1 BBHEE S
(d)  There was no other general meeting held in 2014. (d)  P20145R @ BHEEMARTERSERIT -
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meeting to the
directors and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance
with the Articles and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda
and the relevant documents will be provided to all directors in
a timely manner. The chairman will give a proper briefing to all
directors on items to be put forward at a Board meeting. To ensure
compliance with the procedure of Board meetings and all applicable
rules and regulations, all directors may gain a full understanding
of all relevant data in a timely manner and may receive advice
and services from the company secretary. The minutes of Board
meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available for
inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company would provide a comprehensive
induction package covering the summary of the responsibilities
and obligations of a director of a Hong Kong listed company, the
Company’s constitutional documents and the Guides on Directors’
Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies Registry to each newly
appointed director to ensure he/she to have sufficient awareness of
good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules, corporate
governance practices and other regulatory regime to the directors
with written materials, as well as organises seminars on the
professional knowledge and latest development of regulatory
requirements related to director’s duties and responsibilities.

In 2014, the Company invited The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

to give an seminar on the topic of “Boardroom Strategies in Risk
Management” to Board members.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
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BOARD (Continued) EEg(HE)

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued) EEEYIRTEGE)
Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on B 7 Lt AR RHRHEHAEIN - BiEEERA
the training records provided to the Company by the directors, the A FEEAEEEIEEEE - A2014F - EEHNELRH

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2014: ATEE -
Type of trainings

Directors BE= EIER
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei =S A C
Zuo Manlun Vbl A, C
Zuo Xiaoping ST A, C
Lai Zhigiang FEER A, C
Kong Zhaocong FLIKER A, C
Chen Guonan e =] A C
Lin Shaoquan ma A, C
Huang Guirong 2B A, C
Luo Jianfeng HiEE A C
Non-executive director FEHITES
Lin Dewei N A C
Independent non-executive directors BIEHITES
Bai Chongen HER A B, C
Fung Pui Cheung SR A C
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TE=x C
Cheung Man Yu iR XF A C
Lan Fang® B -
Gao Lixin® = ALET A C

Notes: B5E -

A: attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEERAER REFERLRE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: RAFNER/REERRWBES

C: reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the C: FBEABHEERE &F ¢/ BKL REKEARQ

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and AIEBHEM BE - W RER

business of the Company
(a) Director who was appointed with effect from 1 January 2015. (a) R2015F1 A1HEZERES -

(b) Director who resigned with effect from 1 January 2015. (b)  M2016F1B1HBHTES -
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BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedure of the Board meeting and ensure
the Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and
corporate governance development and has considered their
opinions when making a decision. The company secretary is also
directly responsible for the Group's compliance with its continuing
obligations under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers
and Mergers and Share Repurchases, Companies Ordinance, SFO
and other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the company secretary
has received no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to refresh his knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in
the discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors
and officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of
trust proven against them.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain
committees under its supervision, including the Company's
audit committee (“Audit Committee”), remuneration committee
("Remuneration Committee”) and nomination committee
(“"Nomination Committee"”) (collectively known as “Board
Committees”). Board Committees can engage intermediaries to
provide professional opinions and the reasonable expenses incurred
as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung (chairman of the Audit Committee and independent
non- executive director), Mr. Lin Dewei (non-executive director),
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheung Man Yu (both are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility of
the Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective audit
of the truth and accuracy of the Group’s economic operation and
financial activities, financial policies, financial procedures, internal
control, external audit, internal audit, financial information reporting
and financial data and assist the Board in discharging its relevant
duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each
year. In 2014, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on
page 15.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during 2014

° review of the annual report and the annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 December 2013, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval,

° review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence
and its report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31
December 2013, with a recommendation to the Board for the
re-appointment of Ernst & Young at the 2014 annual general
meeting;

° review of continuing connected transactions;
° review of the Group internal audit reports;

° review of the interim report and the interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2014, with a
recommendation to the Board for approval;

o review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2014;

° consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

° review of the corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the corporate governance
disclosures for the six months ended 30 June 2014, with
recommendations to the Board for approval; and

° review of the annual report on effectiveness of internal
controls under the Code, with a recommendation to the Board
for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the
annual report and annual results announcement for the year ended
31 December 2014 with a recommendation to the Board for
approval.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the service fees paid or
payable by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

BEEZEE@W)

SNES R BUEm
BZE2014F12A3MBIEFE - AEERIMNEZ
AN A BN Z IR BB T

RMB million
AREBEETRT
Annual audit services FEFRTRSE 4.48
Non-audit services® AR 2.13
Total Bz 6.61

The non-audit service fees paid or payable to the external auditors were mainly
for reviewing the Company's interim results and providing advice on matters in
relation to taxation and information technology. The provision of these services
by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due to their professional
knowledge.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (chairman of the Remuneration Committee
and independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei
(executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Dr. Bai
Chongen and Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan (both are independent
non-executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying
and formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

In order to determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to
members of the Board, market rates and factors such as each
director’'s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken into
account. The following factors are considered when determining
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

° business requirements;

° individual performance and contribution to results;

o company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

° changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand
fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and

° general economic situation.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2014, the Remuneration Committee convened one
meetings and made the recommendation of the remuneration
packages for directors and senior management to the Board. The
attendance record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on
page 15.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees
are set out in note 8 to the financial statements. In addition, the
remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of
less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises six members, namely
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and
executive director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Fung
Pui Cheung, Dr. Bai Chongen, Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, Ms.
Lan Fang who was appointed with effect from 1 January 2015
and Mr. Gao Lixin who was resigned with effect from 1 January
2015 (all of them are independent non-executive directors).
The major duty of the Nomination Committee is to study and
make recommendations on the candidates, selection criteria
and procedure in respect of the Company's directors and senior
management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the
Board, identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes
recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting
each year. In 2014, the Nomination Committee convened one
meetings. The Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, recommended the Board on the list
of retiring directors for re-election at the annual general meeting on
30 May 2014, and reviewed the independence of all independent
non-executive directors. The Nomination Committee recommended
the Board on the appointment of Ms. Lan Fang as an independent
non-executive director after taking account of the Board diversity
factors and consideration of her work experience. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 15.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy in September 2013
which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company's strategic
objectives and sustainable development. The Company seeks to
achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and other qualities. The Company will also take into
consideration its own business model and specific needs from
time to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will review the Board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to
time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors.
Two of them are females. One third of the Board members are
independent non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical
review and control of the management process. The composition
of the Board reflects the necessary balance of skills, professional
experience and knowledge for effective leadership of the Company.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control of the Group. For the year ended 31 December
2014, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the internal
control system in the aspects of finance, operation, compliance
control and risk management functions with the assistance of
the Audit Committee. The Group’s internal control includes the
establishment of a management structure that defines the authority
to help the Group achieve its business targets, protect assets
to prevent unauthorised embezzlement or handling, ensuring
maintaining proper accounting records as reliable financial data
for internal use and publication and ensuring compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations. The system aims to provide
reasonable (but not absolute) assurance that there are no material
misstatements or losses and manage (but not completely eliminate)
the risks of the Group's operating system failure and failure to
achieve business objectives. Having reviewed the Group's internal
control report, the Board considers the internal control system
effective and appropriate.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The Group has formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby
employees can report any matters to the Chairman or the
Audit Committee secretly by sending electronic mails to the
designated address or by phone. Such matters may include
misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud regarding financial matters
and accounting practices without fear of being accused. Any
Shareholder or stakeholder can also report similar concerns in
writing or verbally in confidence to the Audit Committee.

THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2013 Revision, as amended from time to time).
However, pursuant to the Articles, the Shareholder(s) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings following the
procedures below:

° Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which
is a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request
for the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have
such a principal office, the registered office. The requisition
shall specify the object of the meeting and be signed by the
requisitionist(s), and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the
date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at the general meeting of the Company.

° The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general
meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.

° If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be
held within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves
or any of them representing more than one-half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which the meeting may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition. All reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS AND
PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING
(Continued)

° An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of
a special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’
notice in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting
shall be called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The
notice of the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda
of the meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered
and in the case of special business, the general nature of that
business.

° Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS’
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the
Company to the Board at the Company's principal place of business
in Hong Kong or by email or through the Company's investor
relations whose contact details are provided in the “Corporate
Information” section of this Annual Report. In addition, the
Shareholders can contact Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, the Company’'s branch share registrar, if they
have any enquiries about their shareholdings and entitlements to
dividend.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency
in communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company and general meetings. The Company
encourages the Shareholders to attend the Company’'s general
meetings. The Group's financial and other information is also
published on the website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the website of the Company (www.lesso.com).

The Company’s senior management endeavours to maintain an
open dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they
have a thorough understanding of the Company and its operations
and strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of
the function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent
third party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/
analyst meetings irregularly and led investors and analysts to visit
its plants.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

As regards investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen
its corporate responsibility so that global investors can have
an adequate knowledge and understanding of the Company's
operating strategy, financial performance and development
prospects. The Company will actively develop and maintain close
relationship with investors, analysts and media to achieve sound
investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business
and performance, nor does the company engage in discussion on
events or trends related to the reporting period. The Company will
not initiate any meeting or conference call with public in which
these matters are discussed. A quiet period starts at 60 days or
30 days prior to the disclosure of annual results or interim results
respectively, and lasts until the announcement of the annual results
or the interim results.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was no change
to the memorandum and Articles of the Company. The latest
memorandum and Articles of the Company is available on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ERENWRDN

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

China Lesso is a leading large-scale industrial group, making
building materials and interior decoration products in mainland
China. The Group has 20 production bases in 14 regions which
support a nationwide sales network, providing a comprehensive
range of diverse products and quality sales services for its
customers.

Quality products, strong brand influence, advanced technologies
in research and development and a wide sales network have
reinforced the Group's market leadership in southern China and
have allowed it to springboard into other local markets in the
country. In addition to steady enhancing the core business of pipe
business, the Group has been fostering growth drivers by pursuing
the development of its new business of building materials and
interior decoration products, namely those of systems of doors and
windows, sanitary ware products and integrated kitchens.

MARKET OVERVIEW

During the year under review, the government enacted a number
of policies of accelerating the country’s urbanisation process,
construction of social security housing and redevelopment of
shanty areas. These measures favoured the development of
pipe industry. Specifically, the edict of the “State Planning for
New Mode of Urbanisation for 2014 to 2020" stipulated that the
country’s urbanisation rate be raised to 60% in 2020 from the
present 53.7%. Such a plan and the entailed renovation works
have to be backed by enhanced piping systems, including those
for telecommunications, the supply of power, heat and gas, water
supply and drainage, the sewerage system, and those for the
refuse disposal and fire services. Therefore, the acceleration of
the new mode of urbanisation, the construction of urban piping
systems and hydraulic engineering works will help boost the
sustainable development of the pipe industry in the long term.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

The government has also been pressing ahead with major
hydraulic engineering works for saving and supplying water. The
State Council has already mapped out a construction blueprint
that includes 172 important hydraulic engineering works for the
years 2014 and 2015 and the “Thirteenth Five-year Plan” that will
span the period of 2016 to 2020. A total of RMB4 trillion will be
invested in hydraulic engineering reform in the coming decade
or RMB400 billion annually. When all the hydraulic engineering
works are completed, the country will be able to supply 80 billion
more cubic metres of water and save 26 billion cubic metres
of water in agriculture annually while the irrigation area will be
increased by more than 78 million Chinese mu, reinforcing the
major hydraulic systems in mainland China. In February of 2015, the
Central Government issued its Number One Document about the
development of agriculture, rural villages and farmers’ livelihood,
reiterating its emphasis on enhancing the irrigation systems and
hydraulic works for drinking water. This will further stimulate the
rural areas’ demand for pipes for water supply and drainage, and
will boost the development of the pipe industry.

Meanwhile, the country’s pilot scheme for managing integrated
subterranean piping systems for the urban areas will be
implemented in two phases in 2015 and 2016. The municipalities
under the direct jurisdiction of the Central Government, provincial
capitals and cities of other administrative levels which have
been earmarked for such schemes will receive annual special
subsidies of RMB500 million, RMB400 million and RMB300
million respectively from the Central Government. Cities of
the pilot scheme will build integrated subterranean piping
systems for the supply of water, heat, power, gas and those for
telecommunications, television broadcast and drainage in their
major districts under the unified planning, design, engineering
work and maintenance with the aim of improving the quality of
the country’'s overall urban subterranean piping systems. Another
factor which shall lead to a steady growth in the demand for plastic
pipes and pipe fittings is the government notice about work on
saving water, which was jointly issued by the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-rural Development and the National Development and
Reform Commission to require the replacement and renovation of
urban water supply piping systems which have been used for more
than fifty years and are made of now obsolete materials.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
ERER MO )

MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued) Z B ()

Furthermore, the government will keep speeding up the o FRNEEEHETEREG LS - 8
redevelopment of shanty areas, renovation of dilapidated rural [+= e A JBEFEREFSNRBEE « 2K
housing and construction of social security housing under the fBENEMNREUHFEHEAMBGETIZ c Hd -
“Twelfth five-year Plan” despite the fluctuations in the property JFEHIEIZREEMEIEA3,60080 @ Bt 5
market during the year. In particular, a total of 36 million units of 2015F(R[EE R 4RIFEEE =iEARNEL0,0001E
social security housing will be constructed by 2015, with total JT HEYELEFPEZRS - KEGARERERE
investment amounting to RMB4 trillion. This will boost the demand ZEMREERNREZKE LA HEE -

for building materials and interior decoration products such as

systems of quality doors and windows, sanitary ware products and

integrated kitchens in the long run.

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥ OB
PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS BREEREHER

As a mainstay operation of China Lesso, the plastic pipes and HFEEBHNFEEEABREBELEH © B AR
pipe fittings business is supplying over 10,000 kinds of pipes W& @EE4E RTEE® 10,0007 @ B2 EFH
and pipe fittings which are widely applied to such fields as water W47k ~ HEk « B MHE K@ - @B =® - 2
supply, drainage, power supply and telecommunications, gas [ - HBEFEH SE4E1, - RNEBEER E 2K HE
transmission, agriculture, floor heating and fire services. Through 484k + ARPEIRHEELEESN2ERG - A E
a wide distribution network, the Group provides quality products FEFR @ NEBRGIDIERE  FEE QB2
and comprehensive services for its customers. During the year ) EENEEERSE  EBLERHAES @ PEE
under review, the Group actively seized the market opportunity FRZEBKBERAA - EEMBAETEES AR
by expanding its sales network with its brand influence and by & -

improving its product portfolio, and thus achieved a steady progress

in business and satisfactory results in sales volume and revenue.

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue from plastic =~ ~FE & 5]2014F R2013FE B R EEREHER
pipes and pipe fittings business by product application for 2014 and W AIRE RERZI DS ¢

2013:
2014 2013
20145 2013%F
RMB million % of total revenue RMB million % of total revenue
AREBER TN AREBETL fEBUKA%
Water supply oK 5,315 38.7% 4,822 39.5%
Drainage HEK 5,217 38.0% 4,637 38.0%
Power supply and EWk
telecommunications KiEa 2,344 17.1% 2,139 17.5%
Gas transmission 1R ik 242 1.8% 186 1.5%
Others* Hith# 615 4.4% 431 3.5%
Total Bt 13,733 100.0% 12,215 100.0%
# “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. # [Efh |0 FEEA - HBE NIEM
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPES AND PIPE FITTINGS BUSINESS (Continued)
The plastic pipes and pipe fittings business’ sales volume rose by
12.5% to 1.43 million tonnes in 2014 from 1.27 million tonnes in
2013, with revenue up by 12.4% to RMB13,733 million in 2014
from RMB12,215 million in 2013. In particular, sales volume of PVC
products grew by 12.2% to 1.13 million tonnes while that of non-
PVC products increased by 13.5% to 300,000 tonnes. Revenue
from the sales of PVC products amounted to RMB8,819 million,
accounting for 64.2% of the revenue of the plastic pipes and pipe
fittings business.

During the year under review, the material costs stabilised
following a decline. In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Group
conducted promotional sales of certain products, which resulted
in a slight decrease in the average selling price. The average
cost of plastic pipes and pipe fittings slightly declined by 1.4% to
RMB7,023 per tonne in 2014 from RMB7,124 per tonne in 2013,
while the average selling price slightly decreased by 0.1% to
RMB9,593 per tonne in 2014 from RMB9,598 per tonne in 2013. In
particular, the average selling price of the PVC products decreased
by 2.4% year-on-year to RMB7,833 per tonne while that of the non-
PVC products increased by 3.9% year-on-year to RMB16,073 per
tonne.

The table below sets out the breakdown of sales volume, revenue
and average selling price by product material for 2014 and 2013:

EBOEE)

BHEBEREHERK(E)

R2014FE - AEB v BHEEREHEBTH
MBIHEAR2013F 212780 - 12K 12.65% =143
EME WAB2013F 2 ARBE122161& T
FH124% 2 AR¥137.3318L - H/F » PVC
MIEPVCE RMEHEREF DRI IN12.2%
13.5% » 1138 MEMB0ENE - REPVCERH
WA BAREES19ETT B EBEBREHE
THWAKI64.2% °

REBEFR  BEMERAERNERFETAEEME
B MAEER2014FEMNFE I HERE
THEESE - AmEHEESSE N EEE - 2R
BEENMEHZFHKAB2013FHEMEARE
7124 TTHE T 1.4% Z2014F ) B A R#7,023
U0 FHEEH2013FMEMEA R9,598 L8
T ER0.1% 2 2014F K FHEA K#9,5937T + &
F o PVCERMFEHEERL TH2.4%EFMA
R#¥7,8337L ' PVCEMMFEHEEBAIRLL L
F3.9% == A RE16,0737T °

NN

TREFI2014F K 2013 F IR E m ¥ F 8 5 B9 35
B WARFHEBDRFE

2014 2013 Change in
014E 03% £4
Sales Average Sales Average Sales Average
volume  Revenue selngprice ~ volume  Revenue selingprice  volume  Revenue selling price
#E WA FHEE & YA THER e A THER
Tonne  RMB million RMB Tonne  RMB million RB
B ARMEET  ARE B AREEET  ARE
Plastic pipes and pipe fittings BREENEL
- Pvce -pyce 1125911 8819 7833 1,003,362 8,049 8022 122% 9.6% (2.4)%
- Non-PVCH = A 305,725 4,914 16073 269269 4166 15,472 135% 18.0% 39%
1,431,636 13,733 9593 1272631 12,215 9,59 125% 12.4% (0.1)%
Construction contracts IRAK N/A n N/A NA 58 NA NA - 224% N/A
Others® Efge N/A 1019 N/A N/A 798 N/A N/A 217% N/A
Total iy N/A 14,823 N/A N/A 13,071 N/A N/A 13.4% N/A
Notes: B3 -

“PVC" refers to material used in the manufacture of plastic pipes and pipe
fittings with high mechanical strength and hardness.

“Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE and
PP-R.

“QOthers” include ancillary, building materials and interior decoration products,
and other materials. Sales volumes for “others” are measured in units rather
than tonnes and the size of the units may vary with different products.

[PVC IiE— BN A A S A RS 2R B R
FERORTRE -

[JEPVC BRI &8 R B £ E R PEHIRPP-RfI ©

[Efh | RERE  EMREERREMME o [EA4 6
SHEABAIMIEAREG - BETRERNESBEMNAIES
BANRA -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

SALES NETWORK

The Group has a sales network which strategically spans China.
As at 31 December 2014, the number of the Group's independent
and exclusive tier-one distributors rose to 2,000 all over the
country. Southern China remained the Group's major market,
and its output, sales and revenue there has been boosted by the
commenced operation of its production base in Hainan. The Group
was vigorously increasing the market penetration of its products
in southern China to consolidate its market leadership there, and
was actively expanding its business presence beyond the region
to increase its overall sales with a geographically more balanced
source of income. During the year under review, the Group's sales

FMOpEE)

SHERE
NEENBEEPEEREHEEEH - #2014
F12A318  AEERZBESHOBYIBR —
WISHREHER T 2,000% - EEMBNRANR
EEMEEHS  TABESHEMNKRE  E
HEMBAE—FIRA - AEBEBRIRSERL
BEZ2EER  ZEEMBBELML - TRGHESE
PRI - MRS EEBHEE  FURATE
BEE - RBEFRN AEEEKHBEEZATAI
EHHEMBARBYESBERE  KEER
Hh [ K2 5 R LA S [ B9 UR A L 55 Bl 2 58.2 % Al
41.8% * FFEANEBBE -

and revenues in all the regions under its market coverage grew
consistently. The ratio of the Group's revenues from southern
China to those from elsewhere in the country stood at 58.2% and
41.8%, which met its expectations.

TREIN2014F R2013FRK L [ 8 5 r K

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue by operating

region for 2014 and 2013: NG
2014 2013
20145 201345
RMB million % of total revenue RMB million % of total revenue
Region* 1t &# ARBEER EEB A% AREBET fEBUKA %
Southern China EE 8,631 58.2% 7,906 60.5%
Southwestern China pidfezpiul 1,445 9.7% 1,319 10.1%
Central China HEh 1,576 10.6% 1,308 10.0%
Eastern China EH 734 5.0% 660 5.0%
Northern China 3l 1,018 6.9% 875 6.7%
Northwestern China Fipl 1] 2 575 3.9% 472 3.6%
Northeastern China Rt E 389 2.6% 303 2.3%
Outside China H BRI 455 3.1% 228 1.8%
Total wact 14,823 100.0% 13,071 100.0%
® Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to financial # Z RN T EBEF BN ERRMES -

statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

RAISING UTILISATION RATE AND PRODUCTION EFFICIENCY
The Group has been actively increasing the automation of its
production bases and raising the utilisation rate of their production
equipment and their production efficiency. During the year under
review, the Group continued to optimise the equipment at its
production bases to raise utilisation rate and reduce production
costs to enhance the overall production efficiency and achieve
economies of scale. These measures resulted in profit of healthy
and acceptable level. On the other hand, the production bases
in Hainan and Yunnan successively commenced production,
boosting the annual designed production capacity of the Group's
plastic pipes and pipe fittings business to 2.0 million tonnes by
the end of 2014 from 1.8 million tonnes at the end of 2013. The
capital expenditure (excluding business combinations) for 2014
totalled approximately RMB1.26 billion, and was mainly used for
constructing new production bases in Hainan and Yunnan as well
as for updating the facilities at and the automation of the existing
production bases.

BUSINESS OF BUILDING MATERIALS AND INTERIOR
DECORATION PRODUCTS

The Group has been developing the business of new types of
building materials and interior decoration products since 2012. The
business mainly provides major property developers with various
types of integrated building materials and interior decoration
products as well as total solution to their residential property
projects, including systems of quality doors and windows, sanitary
ware products and integrated kitchens. The Group believes that
the ongoing urbanisation, redevelopment of villages in urban
areas, construction of social security housing and redevelopment
of shanty areas, coupled with the recovering property market, will
stimulate the demand for building materials and interior decoration
products. This business enjoys synergy with the Group’s other
existing product lines and will become another growth driver of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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PROSPECTS

Looking ahead to 2015, although China is still facing the risk of an
economic downturn, it is predicted that the country’s economy
will make a steady progress and the operating environment will be
improving. It is because the Central Government has set the goal of
achieving a steady growth in economy for the year, and has recently
lowered both the reserve requirement ratio for financial institutions
and the prime rate, which bode well for the national economy. The
Group believes that the government’s policies on urbanisation,
reinforcement in construction of irrigation systems for rural villages
and enormous investment in renovation of urban drainage system
will greatly boost the demand for plastic pipes.

According to the meeting minutes of the Plastic Pipe Professional
Committee of the China Plastics Processing Industry Association,
the country’s plastic pipe output rose by 7.5% in 2014. Presently,
plastic pipes account for 40% of the total number of pipes which
are used and made of all kinds of materials. However, it is believed
that plastic pipes, which are now mainly applied to urban piping
systems and piping systems for agriculture, drinking water,
irrigation and drainage, will be used in more other fields.

The Group will continue to optimise its business mix and diversify
its product offerings to consolidate and enhance its leading position
in the industry, and strengthen its core competencies. It has
mapped out the following strategies to achieve these objectives:

ENHANCING PRODUCTION CAPACITY TO GEAR UP FOR
BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Group will pursue the strategy of automating its production
bases. It has also earmarked about RMB1.1 billion for total capital
expenditure for 2015 and the sum will be mainly spent on the
construction of a production base in Shandong as well as the
automation and enhancement of equipment in existing production
bases. The move will help the Group further enhance the
economies of scale, raise the utilisation rate and reduce wastage
in production, thus effectively managing production cost and
enhancing the overall production efficiency.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

DEVELOPING AND CONSOLIDATING NATIONWIDE SALES
NETWORK

The Group has been maintaining its market dominance in southern
China, and will continue to consolidate its leadership and raise
its market penetration there. It will also endeavor to enhance the
awareness and reputation of its brand. Moreover, the Group has
been actively developing the markets of the southwestern, central
and northern parts of China in recent years by fully leveraging
its brand influence, segmenting the market and further building
up its sales network, with the aim of increasing its revenues
and profitability. The moves will also enable the Group to tap
more markets with potential for growth and will lead to a more
geographically balanced source of income.

DEVELOPING BUSINESS OF BUILDING MATERIALS AND
INTERIOR DECORATION PRODUCTS INTO FUTURE GROWTH
DRIVER

The Group has been engaged in the business of building materials
and interior decoration products since 2012, providing customers
with a complete system of doors and windows, sanitary ware
products and integrated kitchens. The Group will continue to form
partnerships with sizeable property developers, and will expand
its distribution network to provide the customers with integrated
building materials, interior decoration products and services which
will become another growth driver of the Group.

ESTABLISHMENT OF LESSO MALL, A PLATFORM FOR
DEVELOPING NEW BUSINESS OF BOTH ONLINE AND OFFLINE
SALES OF HARDWARE, ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND
BUILDING MATERIALS

In order to reinforce and take the Group’s advantage in sales and
distribution channels and to diversify its businesses, it established
“Lesso Mall"” in early 2015, being a diversified and competitive
platform to conduct both online and offline sales and display a
wide range of products, including hardware, electrical equipment
and building materials. Lesso Mall provides distributors with an
integrated service that encompasses procurement, supply and
sales. The Group believes that the business platform has good
prospects as an extension of its business.

CONCLUSION

As a manufacturer of the most comprehensive range of building
materials and interior decoration products in China, China Lesso is
confident about the prospect of its businesses of pipes and pipe
fittings, building materials and interior decoration products. The
Group will endeavour to fulfill its corporate mission of “Create
a Relaxing Life for Dwellers” by developing itself into a leading
large-scale industrial group that makes building materials and
interior decoration products in the world. It aims to provide more
products of high price-performance ratio for customers, enabling a
comfortable and quality life at home for them.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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RESULTS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’'s businesses
continued their healthy and steady growths. The Group’s revenue
rose by 13.4% year-on-year to RMB 14,823 million. In particular, the
sales volume of such core products as plastic pipes and pipe fittings
continued to grow, and increased by 12.5% year-on-year to 1.43
million tonnes. The gross profit rose by 16.4% to RMB3,801 million,
with a gross profit margin slightly up by 0.6 percentage points to
25.6%, which was maintained at a healthy and reasonable level.

During the year under review, the Group entered into agreements
with a number of banks to obtain syndicated term loan facilities
in the aggregate amount of US$290 million, so as to optimise its
debt structure and reduce financing cost. The Group redeemed
its Senior Notes in the principal amount of approximately US$259
million, and recorded a one-off premium and unamortised issuance
expenses arising from early redemption of the Senior Notes of
RMB92.77 million. Nevertheless, the Group believes that the earlier
redemption of the notes will improve its balance sheet and financial
structure and will save its financing costs in the long term.

Moreover, the exchange rates between Renminbi and HK dollar
and the US dollar were fluctuating, resulting in an exchange loss
of approximately RMB6.58 million for the Group during the year
(2013: an exchange gain of approximately RMB44.01 million).
However, the exchange loss will not have any negative impact on
the profitability of the Group’s core business and cash flows.

The Group's EBITDA was RMB2,520 million, representing an
increase of 10.6% year-on-year. The EBITDA ratio was 17.0%
(2013: 17.4%), which was kept at a healthy and reasonable level.
The Group's effective tax rate decreased to 16.6% in 2014 from
18.7% in 2013. The Group's profit before tax increased by 4.5%
year-on-year to RMB1,847 million and profit attributable to the
owners of the Company increased by 7.2% to RMB1,554 million.
Basic earnings per share increased by 4.2% year-on-year to
RMBO0.50.

As a token of gratitude to the Shareholders for their support in the
past year, the Board proposed payment of final dividend of HK13
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: HK12
cents).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance,
fund utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject
to effective centralised management and supervision. The Group
keeps reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total debts (i.e. total
bank loans and other borrowings) of approximately RMB3,180
million, of which 75.3% was denominated in US dollar, 23.1% was
denominated in HK dollar and 1.6% was denominated in Renminbi.
The Group's borrowings are subject to floating rates ranging from
1.17% to 5.60% per annum with maturity periods ranging from
within one year to four years.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately RMB7,315 million and RMB3,810
million respectively. The Group's current ratio (that is, the ratio of
current assets to current liabilities) decreased to 1.92 from 1.94
as at 31 December 2013, while the quick ratio (that is, the ratio of
current assets less inventories to current liabilities) increased to
1.34 from 1.20 as at 31 December 2013. The Group's total equity
increased to approximately RMB8,550 million. The Group’'s gearing
ratio (calculated on the basis of the total debts divided by the sum
of total debts and total equity) stood at a healthy level of 27.1%.

With cash and bank deposits, including restricted cash, of
approximately RMB3,199 million as well as unutilised banking
facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient working
capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
other than borrowings denominated in US dollar and HK dollar. No
hedging has been arranged on the above-mentioned exposure.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group's held-to-
maturity investments with an aggregate net carrying amount
of approximately RMB30 million (2013: approximately RMB243
million) and available-for-sale investments with an aggregate net
carrying amount of approximately RMB5 million (2013: Nil) were
pledged to a bank to secure the banking facility granted to the
Company. The Company has not utilised this banking facility as at
31 December 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the Group employed a total of
approximately 7,700 employees including directors. Total staff
costs were RMB662 million during the year. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined
based on their work performance, professional experience and the
prevailing industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus may be
paid to employees based on individual performance. Other benefits
to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme and
training programmes.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

EEEHE

Set out below are the annual report presented by the Board
together with the Group’'s audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries and a joint venture are set out
in notes 37 and 15 respectively to financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2014 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 58 to 151.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK13 cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the
“Proposed Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 26
May 2015, subject to the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
15 May 2015 (the “2015 AGM"). It is expected that the Proposed
Final Dividend will be paid on Monday, 1 June 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND
VOTE AT THE 2015 AGM
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 12 May 2015 to Friday, 15 May 2015, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2015 AGM, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m. on Monday, 11 May 2015.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS (Continued)

(B) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE PROPOSED
FINAL DIVIDEND
The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 21 May 2015 to Tuesday, 26 May 2015, both
dates inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
receive the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holders
of shares of the Company should ensure that all transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’'s branch share registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’'s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no later than
4:30 p.m.on Wednesday, 20 May 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for the
past five financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is
set out on page 3. The summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The details of the movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 12 to financial
statements.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
The details of the movements in the Group’s prepaid land lease

payments during the year are set out in note 13 to financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

BORROWINGS

The details of the Group's borrowings are set out in note 24 to
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during
the year are set out in note 27 to financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

At 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,345 million (2013: RMB2,267
million). The amount of RMB1,923 million (2013: RMB1,844
million) represented the Company’s share premium which may
be distributable provided that immediately following the date on
which the divided is proposed to be distributed, the Company will
be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the total turnover
attributable to the Group's five largest customers was less than
30% of the Group's total turnover. The total purchase attributable
to the Group’s five largest suppliers was less than 30% of the
Group's total purchases.

At no time during the year did the directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) have any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report
are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu
Ms. Lan Fang

Mr. Gao Lixin

(appointed with effect from 1 January 2015)
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2015)

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Lan Fang shall retire from office at the 2015 AGM
and, being eligible, offer herself for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Huang Guirong, Mr. Luo Jianfeng, Mr. Lin Dewei, Dr.
Bai Chongen and Mr. Cheung Man Yu are subject to retirement by
rotation at the 2015 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2015 AGM has a
service contract which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Number of issued ordinary shares held®

EERTHARRKEG - HEARORE
BEENESERKXR

R2014F12831H » KRB EERITEBARR
AN A SR E AT A AR B A B (FB 35 AR E K I B XV
HAMEE)NRG HEROREEERESR
BIFEH N E GO EI52EBR AR TIFEN
Erffaaits  RBEZEETRAEBMARRTR
B AT s MO B IR ¢

BFENCRTEBRHE"
Percentage of
the issued share
Personal Family Corporate capital of
Name interests interests interests Total the Company
EEDRERT
i BAES BN 5 NRER By BREANEDE
Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L)  2,118,485,000 (L)®  2,120,793,000 (L) 68.18%
BHE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L)@ 2,118,485,000 (L)® - 2,120,793,000 (L) 68.18%
VS
Zuo Manlun 3,842,000 (L) - - 3,842,000 (L) 0.12%
Tintw
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
ERE
Notes: BEE
(a) The letter “L"” denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FRLIEBZATRZEBLENTE ©
(b) These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which is wholly- owned (b) HERNFIROBINEEMSEE AR EHELESE

by Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“Mr. Wong"”). Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is the spouse of Mr.
Wong, and therefore Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is deemed to be interested in all the
shares of the Company in which Mr. Wong is interested by virtue of the SFO.

(c) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding of 2,308,000 shares of the Company.
Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is
deemed to be interested in all the shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors, chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to
be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2014, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO:

Number of issued

M2014F12A31H - RARR D KABREKG
FHRBEREZSFRAEKIIFEI6KEATFED
TP RamERAREMAT(RARAES
RATHBEBRIN AT -

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held® of the Company
BENBER&IT A ATE BT

RRER 54 ZBEREE BANE D
New Fortune Beneficial owner® 2,118,485,000 (L) 68.11%
FEE2 Ema AP

Notes: FsE -

(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities. (a) FRLIIEZATRZEEZENTE -

(b) Mr. Wong is the ultimate beneficial owner of New Fortune. Under Part XV of (b) HELTRNEEZRREREEA BEZBARBAEE

the SFO, Mr. Wong is deemed to have an interest in these shares, as disclosed
in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above.

The above shares were the same shares as set out under the
section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’'s Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
above. Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the
directors of the Company were not aware of any person or
corporation (other than the directors and chief executive of the
Company) who had any interests or short positions in any shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes on 14 May
2010, pursuant to which the Company is entitled to grant options
prior to and after the IPO. The details of both share option schemes
are as follows:

(A)

(B)

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved by resolutions of the Shareholders on
14 May 2010 and the summary of terms of such Share Option
Scheme are disclosed in the Prospectus. No share options
have been granted, under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The principal terms of a pre-initial public offer share option
scheme (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme"”), approved by
the Shareholders pursuant to the written resolutions of the
Shareholders dated 14 May 2010 are set out in note 29 to
financial statements.

All the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were
granted on 21 May 2010 at a consideration of HK$1 paid by
each grantee. During the year, no share option were granted
or cancelled under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme other
than those exercised and lapsed/forfeited as mentioned
below.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) i IR ST 8 ()
(B) PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) (B) BRAMBEABRETEE)
Details of the movement of the Pre-IPO Share Options during HE2014F12A3MBIEFERN > BXAAH
the year ended 31 December 2014 were as follows: BERNBERESE;FBLT
Number of options
BREHE
Lapsed/

Outstanding Exercised forfeited  Outstanding
Name or category of Exercise as at during during as at
participant Date of grant'”  Option period® price HK$ 01/01/2014 the year® the year 31/12/2014
SRENZ BRE TE  101/01/2014 RER RER  131/12/2014
REH = AT B HAR{TE T %%/ 8K WA {TE
Chief executive
et
Zuo Manlun 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,942,000 (1,942,000) - -
TinfR 22/06/2014¢
Directors
%
Zuo Xiaoping 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 923,200 (923,200) - -
KX 22/06/2014°
Lai Zhigiang 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,733,000 (1,733,000) - -
BER 22/06/2014¢
Kong Zhaocong 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,928,000 (1,928,000} - -
LK 22/06/2014¢
Chen Guonan 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,927,000 (1,927,000) - -
3Gl 22/06/2014%
Lin Shaoquan 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,327,000 (1,327,000} - -
V%S 22/06/2014¢
Huang Guirong 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 1,427,000 (1,427,000) s =
HER 22/06/2014¢
Lin Dewei 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 692,000 (692,000) = =
e 22/06/2014¢
Subtotal directors 9,957,200 (9,957,200) = =
£
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) i IR BT 8 ()
(B) PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) (B) BRAMBEABRETEE)
Number of options
BREZA
Lapsed/
Outstanding Exercised forfeited  Outstanding
Name or category of Exercise as at during during as at
participant Date of grant'”  Option period® price HK$ 01/01/2014 the year® the year 31/12/2014
SRENZ BRE TEE  101/01/2014 RER RER  #31/12/2014
EY] = AT BT I R AT 68 e %%/ %% e R AT
Subtotal directors and 11,899,200 (11,899,200) - -
chief executive
EZRTRAH M
Employees®
Egw
In aggregate 21/05/2010 23/06/2011 to 1.82 23,490,460 (22,624,460) (866,000) -
af 22/06/2014¢
Total 35,389,660 (34,523,660) (866,000) -
@it
Notes: B E
(a) All dates are shown in the format of day/month/year. (a) FrRBENERGAR A/ F -
(b) None of such grantees is a connected person of the Company. (b)  EEEABAHWIEANGHEEAL -
(c) The options are exercisable from 23 June 2011 to 22 June 2014 (both (c) ZEERER B2011F6 92302201466 722
days inclusive) subject to the following vesting periods: H(BIEEEMX) BREZUL T HEBEBRITE
(i) up to 25% of the options commencing on 23 June 2011; (i) MERS I 2 25% 8 LA N A 201146 A23H
HBITHE
(i) up to 60% of the options (including the options not exercised (i) MERRAE 2 60% A T (B 15 1L L Al 57 B Y
under the limit prescribed for in the previous period) commencing FIBARI I TEREARIE 2 EIRBAREITE 2B
on 23 June 2012; and f&4E) FTE20126F6 A23 AAETTHE © &
(il up to 100% of the options (including the options not exercised (i) BIREZ100% KA T (BIFRELHEB
under the limit prescribed for in the previous periods) HARTRA R TR B AR A 2 ERRIBRASITEZ
commencing on 23 June 2013. BERY#E) AT EH20134F6 A 23 A #B1T{E -
(d)  The weighted average closing price of the Company’'s shares (d)  EEERETERBHATARR RRG A INEFHK
immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised was B A4.328TT °
HK$4.32.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions”, no contract of significance to which the Company,
its holding company and any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE NON-
COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company
or any of their respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business of the Group. The
controlling Shareholder being New Fortune and Mr. Wong Luen Hei
(the “Controlling Shareholder”), has entered into a deed of non-
competition in favour of the Group dated 14 May 2010 (the “Deed
of Non-Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted
by the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of
Non-Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness
of the non-competition undertakings. The independent non-
executive directors have reviewed the compliance of the Deed
of Non-Competition, including any potential conflicts of interest
and competition arising from the taking up by the Controlling
Shareholder of opportunities rejected by the Group pursuant to
the Deed of Non-Competition. Based on the confirmation from the
Controlling Shareholder, the independent non-executive directors
are of the view that the Deed of Non-Competition has been
complied with and has been effectively enforced.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group’'s charitable donations were
approximately RMB3.57 million (2013: RMB0.35 million).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2014, save for the Company's
redemptions of the principal amount of US$259 million of the
Senior Notes as disclosed in the announcements dated 14 May
2014 and 29 July 2014, the Company or any of its subsidiaries
did not purchase, sell or redeem any of the Company’s listed
securities.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
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ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreements to acquire 100% equity interest in Heshan Starcorp
Plastic Co., Ltd.” ("Heshan Starcorp”) and Anhui Xin Hua Lian
New Material Co., Ltd" (“Xin Hua Lian"), at a cash consideration of
RMB31.86 million and RMB30 million respectively.

Heshan Starcorp is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of plastic products. Xin Hua Lian is principally engaged in
the manufacture and sale of inorganic nonmetallic materials. The
acquisitions allow the Group to expand its production capacity
on plastic resins processing and inorganic nonmetallic materials.
The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 30 to
financial statements.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 3 March 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement |”) in relation to a syndicated
term loan facility in the amount of US$135 million at an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 2.00% per annum with, among others, Taipei Fubon
Commercial Bank Co., Ltd. and CTBC Bank Co., Ltd. as mandated
lead arrangers, and a syndicate of nine lenders, for the purpose of
refinancing the Group's existing financial indebtedness. The loan
made thereunder is repayable 36 months after the same has been
made.

On 26 June 2014, the Company as borrower entered into a facility
agreement (the “Facility Agreement Il”) in relation to a syndicated
term loan facility in the amount of US$155 million at an interest rate
of LIBOR plus 2.20% per annum with a syndicate of three lenders,
independent licensed banks in Hong Kong, for general corporate
requirements (including the refinancing of the Group’s existing
financial indebtedness). The loan made thereunder is repayable 42
months after the same has been made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement | and Facility Agreement
[l (collectively the “Facility Agreements”), save for additional
requirement that Mr. Wong Luen Hei (being the Controlling
Shareholder) and his family (collectively, the “Wong Family”) shall
remain to have effective management control over the Company
set out in the Facility Agreement |, the Facility Agreements
require that the Wong Family shall collectively maintain, directly or
indirectly, at least 55% of beneficial shareholding interest in the
issued share capital of the Company, carrying at least 55% of the
voting rights, free from any security. Otherwise, a lender shall not
be obliged to fund the loans made under the Facility Agreements,
and the total commitments under the Facility Agreements may be
liable to be cancelled and the outstanding loans with interest and
all other amounts accrued under the Facility Agreements or other
related financial documents may be due and payable to the lenders
immediately.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 34 to financial
statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules
and satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of
such non- exempt connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions are summarised below:

(A)

48

RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES

Background:

Nature of transactions:

On 27 April 2012, Guangdong Lesso
Technology (the “Lessee”) entered
into lease agreement (the “"Lease”)
with Guangdong Liansu Machinery (the
“Lessor"”) whereby the Lessor leased its
certain plants erected on Lot G03-2-1, Daba
Industrial Estate of Longjiang Community
Residents’ Committee, Longjiang Town,
Shunde District, Foshan City, the PRC to
the Group for using as production facilities.

Under the Lease, the Lessee shall bear all
the third party costs, including electricity
and water charges. Since the related
utilities costs are charged by the relevant
government authorities on the Lessor,
the Lessee will reimburse the Lessor for
the same amount of utilities costs paid by
the Lessor (the “Utilities Arrangement”).
For further details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on
27 April 2012

Particulars of the agreements together with
the total consideration for the year ended
31 December 2014 are disclosed below as
required under the Listing Rules:

Rental expenses paid to the Lessor.
Reimbursement of utilities costs charged

by the relevant government authorities on
the Lessor from the Lessee.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BRER S (®)
(A) RENTAL AND UTILITIES EXPENSES (Continued) (A) HERLAFAEERXR(E)
Terms: The Lease is for 32 months commencing on &3 M4 BE201285 1B £ 22014
1 May 2012 and expiring on 31 December F12A31HIEAEA32ME A - &M
2014. The related rents payable by the ABREEASZNNEBAES S
Lessee to the Lessor is RMB276,300 per A AR®276,3007T °
month.
The reimbursable amount of utilities costs NAEERANBESTERS
was equal to the amount charged by the A AE B8 BT AL A m) AR A URER Y
relevant government authorities on the B o
Lessor.
Annual Cap: RMB3.3 million (Leasing agreement) FEER: AREIBEL(HERR)
RMB18.0 million (Utilities Arrangement) ARE1,8008T(RAEEERH)
Total consideration REE
for the year: RMB3.3 million (Leasing agreement) BRE: AR®I0EL(HERZH)
RMB?7.2 million (Utilities Arrangement) ARBET20ETL(AAEELH)
(B) PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT FOR PLASTIC PIPE (B) BEEREHRESRE
MANUFACTURING
Background: On 31 December 2013, the Company =t 2013512 A31H » A A HEE
entered into a framework equipment R PMBRTUERRERER
purchase agreement (the “Framework Z(ERRZE] - B20145F1 A1
Agreement”) with Guangdong Liansu HEZ2014F128318 It AH—
Machinery for 1 year commencing FoBRFE  BREARAR
from 1 January 2014 and ending on 2013F 12 A3 BFTERI A% -
31 December 2014. For details, please
refer to the announcement made by the
Company on 31 December 2013.
Particulars of the Framework Agreement EEBZRME - EREZE2014
together with the total consideration for F12ANALFENBEREDR
the year ended 31 December 2014 are BEMMABERZENT
disclosed below as required under the
Listing Rules:
Nature of transactions: Purchase of equipment for plastic pipe RHUEL . MERMPHUERESREMR

manufacturing from Guangdong Liansu
Machinery.

ERE -
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)
SHE )

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BERS ()

(B) PURCHASE OF EQUIPMENT FOR PLASTIC PIPE (B) BEBREHEEREG(E)
MANUFACTURING (Continued)
Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between ek : AT EHENEEENSHB
the parties which shall not exceed the ERITE
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB97.5 million FEER:  AR¥9,7508 7T
Total consideration for REF
the year: RMB75.0 million BRE: ARE750087T
(C) PURCHASE OF ELECTRONIC ACCESSORIES (C) BEETFmH
Background: On 31 December 2013, the Company B F2013F12A31H » KRR A&
entered in to the original design ERBBERVIRIARTEE
manufacturing (the “ODM") co-operation ([ODMD) A e - A BRH
agreement with Guangdong Liansu Electric ERBGBERAAEBREE T
in relation to the ODM production co- fofh 2 ODMAEEAE - 52014
operation as regards manufacturing of F1A1THBRZE2014F12A31H
electronic accessories by Guangdong BR - BEFE  B2HARAF
Liansu Electric for the Group commencing M2013F12A31BAERM AL -

from 1 January 2014 and ending on 31
December 2014. For details, please refer to
the announcement made by the Company
on 31 December 2013.

Particulars of the agreement are disclosed BENASSRE ETRMRE
below as required under the Listing Rules: BRWT
Nature of transactions: Purchase of electronic accessories from RE5ME: RERBMPERESE TN -

Guangdong Liansu Electric.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed between &3 AT ERTHREBIERA
the parties which shall not exceed the ERITE °
prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB30.0 million FELR:  AREKES000&8T
Total consideration for NG
the year: RMB2.8 million BRE: AR%2808T
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(D)

(E)

ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTIES

On 20 June 2014, the Group entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with Mr. Wong Luen Hei and Ms. Zuo
Xiaoping (the Controlling Shareholder and his wife) to acquire
Shunde Properties at aggregate consideration of RMB
92,640,000. The acquisitions are made in order for the Group
to expand into the exhibition venue leasing business. The
acquisitions of Shunde Properties are connected transactions
and the principal terms of these acquisitions have been set
out in detail in the Company’s announcement dated 20 June
2014.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE
(i) Purchase of Equipment for Plastic Pipe Manufacturing
Background: On 30 December 2014, the
Company entered into a framework
equipment purchase agreement
(the “Framework Agreement”) with
Guangdong Liansu Machinery for 3
years commencing from 1 January
2015 and ending on 31 December
2017. For details, please refer to
the announcement made by the
Company on 30 December 2014.

Particulars of the Framework

Agreement are disclosed below as

required under the Listing Rules:
Nature of transactions: Purchase of equipment for plastic
pipe manufacturing from Guangdong
Liansu Machinery.

Terms: The purchase price to be agreed
between the parties which shall not
exceed the prevailing market price.

Annual Cap: RMB120 million (for the year ending

31 December 2015); RMB130 million
(for the year ending 31 December
2016); and RMB140 million (for the
year ending 31 December 2017)
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(E)] CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

(Continued)

(ii) Purchase of Electronic Accessories

Background:

Nature of transactions:

Terms:

Annual Cap:

On 30 December 2014, the
Company entered into the original
design manufacturing (the “ODM")
co-operation agreement with
Guangdong Liansu Electric in relation
to the ODM production co-operation
as regards manufacturing of
electronic accessories by Guangdong
Liansu Electric for the Group for 3
years commencing from 1 January
2015 and ending on 31 December
2017. For details, please refer to
the announcement made by the
Company on 30 December 2014.

Particulars of the agreement are
disclosed below as required under
the Listing Rules:

Purchase of electronic accessories
fromGuangdong Liansu Electric.

The purchase price to be agreed
between the parties which shall not
exceed the prevailing market price.

RMB20 million (for the year ending
31 December 2015); RMB30 million
(for the year ending 31 December
2016); and RMB40 million (for the
year ending 31 December 2017)
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(E) CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE

(Continued)

(iii) Rental and Utilities Expenses

Background:

Nature of
transactions:

Terms:

On 30 December 2014, Guangdong Lesso
Technology (the “Lessee”) entered into
lease agreement (the “"Lease”) with
Guangdong Liansu Machinery (the “Lessor")
whereby the Lessor leased its certain plants
erected on Lot G03-2-1, Daba Industrial
Estate of Longjiang Community Residents’
Committee, Longjiang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, the PRC to the Group
for using as production facilities.

Under the Lease, the Lessee shall bear all
the third party costs, including electricity
and water charges. Since the related
utilities costs are charged by the relevant
government authorities on the Lessor,
the Lessee will reimburse the Lessor for
the same amount of utilities costs paid by
the Lessor (the “Utilities Arrangement”).
For further details, please refer to the
announcement made by the Company on 30
December 2014.

Particulars of the agreements are disclosed
below as required under the Listing Rules:

Rental expenses paid to the Lessor.

Reimbursement of utilities costs charged by
the relevant government authorities on the
Lessor from the Lessee.

The Lease is for 36 months commencing on
1 January 2015 and expiring on 31 December
2017. The related rents payable by the
Lessee to the Lessor is RMB368,419 per
month.

The reimbursable amount of utilities costs
was equal to the amount charged by the
relevant government authorities on the
Lessor.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued) BRERX S (@)

(E)] CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS NOT YET EFFECTIVE (E) MAEMWEBERS (&)
(Continued)
(iii) Rental and Utilities Expenses (Continued)

(iii) HERVAEXEMX(H)

Annual Cap HE =
under Lease BTFE
agreement:  RMB4.4 million FBE - AREL40E T
Annual Cap INGES5:3
under Utilities HIETF
Arrangement: RMB14 million (for the year ending 31 EER: ARE14008T(EZE2015
December 2015) F12A31BIEEE)
RMB16 million (for the year ending 31 AR#1,600& 7T (E1£2016
December 2016) F12A3BLEEE)
RMB18 million (for the year ending 31 ARE1,8008 T (8 £2017
December 2017) F12A31BIFE)

The Company has followed the pricing policies and
guidelines when determining the price and terms of the
connected transactions during the year.

The independent non-executive directors have, for the
purpose of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all
continuing connected transactions and have confirmed
that all continuing connected transactions have been
entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms;
and (iii) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Company's auditor issued an unqualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule
14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a
copy of the said letter to the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT (Continued)

EETHRE @)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 34 to
financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding the
Company’s securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the
Company and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the public float
stipulated in the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-
appoint Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B R BETRE

EY =x

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Lesso Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 58 to 151, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’" RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS" REPORT (Continued)

18N AZ BAM R ()

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’'s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

16 March 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GEEmEMZEKRER

Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12831HIEFE
2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 AR¥ET R ARBFTL
REVENUE WA 5 14,822,772 13,070,547
Cost of sales SHEMK (11,022,038) (9,804,979)
Gross profit EA 3,800,734 3,265,568
Other revenue, income and gains HUWA « Wz Kkflz 5 116,116 155,475
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHEY (769,676) (722,790)
Administrative expenses THAX (581,418) (503,959)
Other expenses Hibfs (486,290) (276,170)
Finance costs BEMK K (233,071) (151,003)
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—HAELEET 15 398 390
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB AR 7 1,846,793 1,767,511
Income tax expense FEHAY 9 (306,435) (329,895)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 1,540,358 1,437,616
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME Htr2m(F%), /Wi
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to HEmge s nEzERn
profit or loss: BER :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign NEINERREER
operations [ERESR (1,170) 6,260
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale AHHERERAEE
investments b 222 -
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (EXPENSE)/INCOME ERHEM2E
FOR THE YEAR (B%) /s (948) 6,260
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR FR2HEWFAE 1,539,410 1,443,876
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (Continued)
MEBmMkEMEERER®

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31HILFE

2014 2013
20145 20134
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
WiE ARETR ARETT
Profit attributable to: AT EIEER
Owners of the Company N/NGIEZ=DN 1,554,024 1,449,261
Non-controlling interests FEEHIER (13,666) (11,645)
1,540,358 1,437,616
Total comprehensive income AT G2 AR
attributable to: ek
Owners of the Company AREEEA 1,551,351 1,455,556
Non-controlling interests S (11,941) (11,680)
1,539,410 1,443,876
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO RAREE AER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EREF 11
Basic ESYN RMB0.50 RMBO0.48
AEK¥0.507T AR#0.487T
Diluted g RMB0.50 RMB0.47

AEK¥0.50T AR#0.477T

Details of the dividends proposed for the year are disclosed in note 4 E R3S B ISR E R EREMNIEF10 -
10 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MBARRR

At 31 December 2014
R2014F12 A31H

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt ARET R ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENEKE 12 5,263,614 4,452,109
Prepaid land lease payments B L ER 13 1,087,126 996,690
Other intangible assets Hit & E 35,405 33,927
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, property, BEE i - 9% - ME LRE
plant and equipment T %S 729,051 169,870
Interest in a joint venture R—HAELENER 15 6,074 5,676
Held-to-maturity investments BERIEERE 16 30,383 231,650
Available-for-sale investments AHHERE 17 39,466 -
Deferred tax assets BEEHIBEE 25 13,577 9,162
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 7,204,696 5,899,084
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 18 2,210,038 2,434,049
Trade and bills receivables BoRENZERERE 19 1,303,576 1,037,629
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  TEf13% - 124 & H e z0E 20 571,942 720,352
Held-to-maturity investments ?ﬂﬁiﬂmﬁ&,\ 16 30,374 17,351
Cash and bank deposits Be RIBITHER 21 3,198,902 2,189,242
Total current assets MENVEERT 7,314,832 6,398,623
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade and bills payables BI2RNTIARER 22 973,387 861,416
Other payables and accruals Hi AR ETER 23 1,564,290 1,252,674
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEFREMETR 24 1,158,729 1,080,092
Tax payable e IR 113,440 103,638
Total current liabilities BB A5 3,809,846 3,297,820
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFHE 3,504,986 3,100,803
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES BEE&BRABHER 10,709,682 8,999,887
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EIS - h=R
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEFREMETR 24 2,021,105 1,607,024
Deferred tax liabilities RELEHIBEE 25 68,542 78,418
Deferred income FIEW T 26 70,312 58,502
Total non-current liabilities nBaBEesE 2,159,959 1,743,944
Net assets BEERHE 8,549,723 7,255,943
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
e BN TR )

At 31 December 2014
7201412 A31H

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B & AR¥T ARETTT
EQUITY i
Issued capital BEITRA 27 135,686 134,316
Reserves i 28(A) 8,409,773 7,105,422
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR TEE AJEGEZ 8,545,459 7,239,738
Non-controlling interests JESE RS 4,264 16,205
Total equity BmiEs 8,549,723 7,255,943
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
EHE EEE
Director Director
= EF

Annual Report 2014 45§ 61



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEREER

Year ended 31 December 2014

BZE2014F12 A3 HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
KARBEARL
Available-
for-sale
Share investment  Exchange Non-
Issued Share  Statutory  Capital option  Merger revaluation fluctuation  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium  reserve®  reserve®™  reserve  reseve  reserve  reserve profits Total interests equity
e

BRORE  RBER fRGRY RARRY RBEGR  oHGR REEMEG EXRBER RERN &% AEER  gREE
RMBOOD  RMB'000  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMB'0D0  RMB'00  AMB000  RMBO0  RMBO0O  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBI0N0
ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR

At 1 January 2013 R03E1 1A 132660 1748241 546529 31646 68,067 5,515 - 18086 3459270 6,010,033 1788 6,027,918

Profitfor the year Emat] - - - - - - - - 1449261 1449261 (11645 1437616
Other comprehensive income /R E

for the year 2EkE - - - - - - - 6,295 - 6,29 (35) 6,260
Total comprehensive income ~ ER2EUE

for the year k] - - - - - - - 6295 1449261 1,455,556 (11,800 1,443,876
Issue of shares ¥kt 1,656 95,390 - - (3684 - - - - 60,201 - 60,201
Capital contributions from ~~ 3Fi%5ig&

noncontoling interests {12 - - - - - - - - - - 1000 10000
Eouitysettled share option. b RfEE B4

amrangements BhiERH - - - - 5,757 - - - - 5,751 - 5,757
Dividends recognisedas ~ BAMEAA

distrbutions to owners ARMEE

(note 10] (HEE10) - - - - - - - - (291809 (291,809 - (291,809
Appropriation to statutory  EETHE

resere HE - - 183789 - - - - - (183759) - - -
At31 December 2013 10135124318

andat T January 2014 RA014E1R1H 134316 1843631F 730288 31645 36,999 h,h15¢ S 4381 4432963 7,239,738 16,205 7,205,943
Profit for the year EREi - - - - - - - - 1554024 1)554,024 (13,666) 1,540,398
Other comprehensive expense  ERTE

for the year 35 - - - - - - 2 (2,89 - (2673) 172 (948)
Total comprehensive income ~ EH2ENE

for the year b - - - - - - m (289 1554024 1551361 (11,941) 1539410
Issue of shares Bkf 1370 7925 - - (3079 - - - - B8 - B8
Dividends recognised as BIERAEA

distrbutions to owners ARMRE

note 10] (HzE10) - - - - - - - - (295460 (295,460) - (295,460)
Transfer upon the expiry of — BNAFEER

thePrePOshare option~~~ ETRiES

Scheme ERGEL - = - - 6 = = - b s s 2
Appropriation to statutory  EETHE

feserve H: = - 213006 - - - - - (1320 - - -
W¥Deerber )l ROOMEDANIT GG LGP WBA  ES S BEIF 20 I GAMEN S5 44 BENTR

# These reserve accounts comprise the reserves of RMB8,409,773,000 (2013: # ZEHBEBEREAUBRIARPHEBEARE
RMB7,105,422,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. 8,409,773,0007t(20134F : AR#7,105,422,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued
rEERER @)

Year ended 31 December 2014
HZE2014F12A31HILFE

Notes: PREE -

(a) In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, each of the Company’s (a) BIBREQTE  AATRPEFMESEHEATA
subsidiaries registered in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of the annual ZEBEPREARSTRNEETNEFEEEZERH B SR
statutory profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years' losses) determined (BB EMBEFEEEER)NI0%EEATERHE  BEE
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to BESEBEDNETMEARNS0% AIE o SEEFEER A
the statutory reserve until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of P BAEFEEBRIEE  WETHENSRTELET
its registered capital. The statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior FORFMERN25% ©

years' losses or to increase capital, provided that the remaining balance of the
statutory reserve is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

(b)  Capital reserve mainly represented the difference between the consideration  (b)  BEZNEE {3 2354 B0 U S5 120 I 4 5 O 4 (2 B B 1 Pk

and the book value of the share of the net assets acquired in respect of the R EERMABE HNESE -
acquisition of non-controlling interests.
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e ——
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2014

HE2014F12A31HEFE
2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
FitzE ARETR AREFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Profit before tax: BRETAD&E A - 1,846,793 1,767,511
Adjustments for: BUATEEELAR
Interest income RS 5 (74,116) (70,586)
Government grants released BB ARBUT 8 (829) (1,031)
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity BIREENEEZEEH
investments REMGHR 5 (3,194) (2,864)
Investment income RENH (1,793)
Interest expenses MER% 140,301 151,003
Premium and unamortised issuance expenses REBOELEER
arising from the early redemption of el EN: 5]
the Senior Notes BIIRZ 6 92,770 -
Depreciation and amortisation WERE#HE 7 439,780 360,338
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of land, HELT  AtEREERN
other intangible assets and property, ME - BE KA
plant and equipment BEMERE/ (Flz) 7 6,690 (5,776)
Gain from a bargain purchase ZBUEMEFIZE 7 - (157)
Equity-settled share option expense MHXT& EERBERERY 7 - 5,757
Write-down of inventories to MJ@W“E
net realisablevalve ~ ## I EE 7 33,380 9,848
Impairment of trade receivables, net %’%Fgﬂﬁl JEREEE 5,626 22,145
Share of profit of a joint venture AME—HAELERT 15 (398) (390)
2,485,010 2,235,798
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BERD,/(3Em) 202,775 (578,374)
Increase in trade and bills receivables EU LG eEYES Sy (245,764) (84,740)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and ~ J5 - 4 R E (b E
other receivables FIER D,/ () 147,901 (263,510)
Increase in trade and bills payables B HENTBREREM 108,456 313,870
Increase in other payables and accruals HibENEE R IES B RN 199,769 131,803
Increase in deferred income BRI 12,639 36,959
Cash generated from operations BEEENES 2,910,786 1,791,806
Bank interest received E”&fﬂﬂﬂ 36,378 19,333
Corporate income tax paid EREERAEH (310,718) (307,677)
Net cash flows from operating activities LEEHEREREFE 2,636,446 1,603,462
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

A fﬁimui%(%ﬁ‘é)

Year ended 31 December 2014

HZE2014F12831HIEFE
2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
WizE AR®T R AREFT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment BBEY¥ « HFE MR EER (1,285,113) (1,161,586)

Proceeds from disposal of items of land, REHELH HBFEEM

other intangible assets and property, mE - BELEE

plant and equipment JBEMAMBHE 12,838 29,496
Additions to prepaid land lease payments BT E T (458,512) (23,698)
Additions to other intangible assets HinmpaELm (10,746) (28,697)
Purchases of held-to-maturity investments ﬁ% S AZIHRE (24,122) (6,362)
Proceeds from maturity of held-to-maturity BEERHRETH

investments P8 5UR 17,428 9,324
Proceeds from early redemption of BIREBRSEEZHEE

held-to-maturity investments Fr{530a 208,573 39,813
Interest received from held-to-maturity investments 258 EEIEIR A 718 36,405 36,544
Purchases of available-for-sale investments EEAHLERE (39,386) -
Investment income received Euﬁl&ﬁﬂﬂlé 1,793 -
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WK B A Al 30 (58,616) (264,106)
Placement of time deposits with original maturity &EAIEHHT R(RBEHR

over three months =fER) (85,060) (16,957)
Withdrawal of time deposits with original maturity }%ﬁémﬁﬁﬁ L(REHR

over three months BBE={EA) 16,957 -
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash SREBERD/(1Em) 86,266 (333,962)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REGHAREREFHE (1,581,295) (1,720,191)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
New bank loans raised HIZIRTER 3,804,422 892,951
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (1,768,428) (388,202)
Early redemption of the Senior Notes REBEOELZE (1,657,906) -
Proceeds from issue of shares, net of expenses BITROMBRE G RETERIE 49,830 60,201
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests ~ JEHE#IER T E - 10,000
Interest paid ERFE (148,484) (142,756)
Dividends paid BENEE (295,460) (291,809)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities BETE (A FFEReRETE (16,026) 140,385
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND BERBESEMEM,/ (BD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS BE 1,039,125 (76,344)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year ~ FHIHEE MRS EEY 1,503,181 1,587,183
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net INETE R BB BT R (11,302) (7,658)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF EXNBERES

THE YEAR E4i-4) 2,531,004 1,603,181
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERBEEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS RGBT
Time deposits with original maturity of THER(REHRA

three months or less when acquired ZEAFUT) 21 1,605,234 35,114
Cash and bank balances BeRRTES 21 925,770 1,468,067

2,531,004 1,503,181
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NGRS O
At 31 December 2014
7201412 A31H

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt AR¥T T ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RIMEE 14 3,244,780 2,573,295
Loans to a subsidiary m—fEBARER 14 1,358,537 1,357,741
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 17 39,466 -
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 4,642,783 3,931,036
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables TR BE RE M EYRRIE - 5,772
Cash and bank deposits We MRITER 21 116,839 337,413
Total current assets ME)EEBE 116,839 343,185
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables and accruals Hit e Ia Rk ETER 1,763 17,514
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMER 24 645,418 496,164
Total current liabilities BB ERE 647,181 513,678
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEEFE (530,342) (170,493)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ZEZERADAR 4,112,441 3,760,543
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEE
Bank loans and other borrowings RITEF R EMER 24 1,847,512 1,545,824
Net assets EETH 2,264,929 2,214,719
EQUITY R
Issued capital BBITIRA 27 135,686 134,316
Reserves i 28(B) 2,129,243 2,080,403
Total equity ] 2,264,929 2,214,719

Wong Luen Hei
EHHE

Director

EF

Luo Jianfeng

miElE

Director

EE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS SRR MY RE

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman lIslands. The addresses of its registered office
and principal places of business are disclosed in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars
of the Company’s principal subsidiaries and its joint venture
are set out in notes 37 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

The Company’s ultimate holding company is New Fortune,
a limited liability company incorporated in the BVI and its
controlling party is Mr. Wong Luen Hei, who is the Chairman
and Executive Director of the Company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong. These financial statements
also include applicable disclosures required by the Listing
Rules and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap
32). These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for available-for-sale
investments which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1

DNAEHR

ARA/—ERHASESEMRINERR
Al HiMMEE k2L X MHENRF
HIRBERIFD -

KRR A —EREERAT o NRAREEH
BREREEETENFIBD BIE NI KR
K5F37 15 °

ARBNERRERRBSFERE - ERNE
BHEBRBESEMAIZNEGRARREZER
ARARARZEFRATESTEMELLE -

mRERE

ZEMBHRREREATEGHAMAER
M EBMBRELERN([EBMBREE
AN (BREMEAYBREEN  FES
AHERA(TEAETEA D ERE) RBER
REFRA - ZEMBRRTEE LR
AR FBRBEDI (328 ) RE 2 BRI
R o R EFMBRERBELNALRE - 1R
RABEFENAIHOERERIN - ZFH
BRRIIAAREZD - BRABEREPIN - A7
BEEDAREREONTTH -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR 5T )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

68

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards and
a new interpretation for the first time for the current year's
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Definition of Vesting Condition’

Included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Accounting for Contingent Consideration
Included in Annual in a Business Combination’
Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRS 13 Short-term Receivables and Payables

Included in Annual
Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle
Amendments to HKFRS 1 Meaning of Effective HKFRSs
Included in Annual
Improvements 2011-2013 Cycle

T Effective from 1 July 2014

The application of these revised standards and the new
interpretation in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior periods and/or on the disclosures set out in
these financial statements.

22 S BRRKBESERES

RAEERNAFENGRMBHRERANERER
TORETER SRR -

BEMBRSENF 0% BRMBHS RAKE
BRI RER G ERTH

(2011%)BETE
BEGHEENTETA BHCBEERSBER
BEGHENETE A FeREEANE
HE
BASITENE0RET K (TR ERRYREs
vl
FEERNERLEIREREE)  HB
-REENG
BANBREENEIRBITL FE TR
(A2010E 220128852
FERE)
BARBREENEIRBTE EBAHRIRREL
(A20105E 220125882 SHEE
EENE)
BRIEREENEIRETA REENSELRENE
(A2010E 220128852
FERE)
EEUBREENEIRETA ERERRREEN R
(MANER2IERSZ 4
)

T B2014F7 ATRRERER

RAFERBZEREFTEN R REY
AN 52 [ B HA B8 1 HA R &0 B 75 R 3R iR
R/ HBFIR RSB RR 2 KB B[S

S/ 0
REE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR 5T )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.3 NEW AND REVISED HKFRSs AND NEW
DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE NOT
YET ADOPTED

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments*
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sales or Contribution of Assets between
HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 Consolidation Exception?
Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations?
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?
Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants?
HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions'
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
2010 - 2012 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs'
2011 -2013 Cycle
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs?

2012 - 2014 Cycle

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
Effective for an entity that first adopts HKFRSs for its annual financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 2016 and therefore is not
applicable to the Group

[ I N O R

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) will affect the presentation and disclosure of certain
information in the consolidated financial statements for the
year ending 31 December 2015.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of the above changes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(i)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

(ii)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(iii)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company's
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investment in a joint venture is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

72

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of joint ventures is included in profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’'s interest
in the joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill
arising from the acquisition of joint ventures is included as part
of the Group's investments in joint ventures.

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the assets, and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the
arrangement.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint
operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly;

° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred
jointly;

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output

arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to
the Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for
in accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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31 December 2014
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation either at fair value or at
the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability
that is a financial instrument and within the scope of HKAS
39 is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
either recognised in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration is not
within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in accordance
with the appropriate HKFRS. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL (Continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group will perform its annual impairment
test of goodwill as at 31 December, if any. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each
of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, construction contract asset, deferred tax assets
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

78

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land

Land and buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles

Leasehold improvements

Not depreciated
2.3% t0 5%
9% to 19%

9.5% to 32.3%

9.5% t0 32.3%

Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND DEPRECIATION
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the period the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other
assets under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents
the direct costs of construction during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed
to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life
and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its
estimated useful life of five years.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

80

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(Continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible assets that are
acquired separately.

OPERATING LEASES

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to profit or
loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are

initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The subsequent measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities depends on their
classification.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument
or financial liability, or, (where appropriate), a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income or expense is recognised on an effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR 5T )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets “at fair value through profit
or loss”, "held-to-maturity” investments, “loans and
receivables” and "available-for-sale” financial assets. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss when the financial assets are either held
for trading or they are designated as at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term;

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

° the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity
dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold
to maturity.

Subsequent to initial recognition, held-to-maturity
investments are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR 5T )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

84

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Loans and receivables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets that are either designated as available-for-sale or are
not classified as (a) financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (c) loans and
receivables.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount
of available-for-sale monetary financial assets relating to
interest income calculated using the effective interest method
and dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.
When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are

recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. The foreign exchange gains
and losses that are recognised in profit or loss are determined
based on the amortised cost of the monetary asset. Other
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if
one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset have an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

86

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present
value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced
carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Loans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised
or has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced
by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at cost

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale financial assets, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired.

If an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair value,
less any impairment loss previously recognised in profit or
loss, is removed from other comprehensive income and
recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available-
for-sale, objective evidence would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment below its
cost. "Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period in which
the fair value has been below its original cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses on equity instruments classified
as available-for-sale are not reversed through profit or loss.
Increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised
directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration or extent to
which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.
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201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

88

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

In the case of debt instruments classified as available-for-sale,
impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount
recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured as
the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair
value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in profit or loss. Future interest income continues
to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of
the asset and is accrued using the rate of interest used to
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss. Impairment losses on debt instruments
are reversed through profit or loss if the subsequent increase
in fair value of the instruments can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a group entity are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss when the financial liabilities are
either held for trading or they are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term;

° on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at fair value through profit or loss upon
initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise;

° the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at fair value
through profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

90

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition
of a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts
are not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises
an associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the
proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety,
the Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the
financial asset between the part it continues to recognise, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative
fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part
that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and any cumulative
gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. A
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer
recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those
parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’'s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

O

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of cash management.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

94

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences,
the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and a joint
venture, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited 1 BB %8 & @R AR A 7

24 TESHHEME @)

Fris st (&)
EEREEET AR MM ERERE - K
HATARRMERNARB AR ABENGESE
M ERR o fisl B R 1R AT BE A R B A1) 7] (4K
AR ERZR  APARAELFR
PAKEBENGE  AgRRELEHESR
2 - HET BRI -

o ERPETHE® MRS R B
FISISIANIEEB A L ST - Mk
WA RS R A E L RTMBEH
EBEWOBEREAE | R

e HERMBARE-—HAELEMNE
EEBEOAHNRERERMS - BRI
MEEEENERZRN I RBRE
] RE [ BB AR A ik M S B] A DA 8
R EEBLT - 5 THER -

ELERAEEENRAER SRS ARIELR
A WENBA ARG FIA A HE
BB RAE TR IR B AR T AR  REER
MREERIAE EQN S REMREMFHE -
I 15 A] BE 7R JE S AR 5t g ) LA Wi [m] 22 5 X AP
DIRERIBEER T IARER -

EEREEER BB NEBRERRERE
EXFEABRPRNHETE - LAREH
RAEETHEERRITHRR(REE) BE

# o

BT IAE E A EREH AR K - B0
BRERTFARNBHRAEERHFENAHRIER
BEERATEIERERN - BREREE S RF
— A BB A — A o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 XESHBEEE @)

POLICIES (Continued)

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
on a systematic basis over the period that the costs, which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant
relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual
installments.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) revenue from the sale of goods, when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b)  contract revenue from the construction contracts on the
percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy “Construction contracts” below;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

96

POLICIES (Continued)

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and
incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct
materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed construction
overheads.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract revenue from a fixed price
construction contract is recognised on the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference to the proportion
of contract costs incurred for work performed to date relative
to the estimated total cost of the relevant contract, except
where this would not be representative of the stage of
completion. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive
payments are included to the extent that the amount can be
measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the
extent of contract costs incurred that is probable will be
recoverable. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits
less recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus
is treated as amounts due from customers for contract work.
Where progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses, the
surplus is treated as amounts due to customers for contract
work.
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31 December 2014
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the
Group's employees participate in various defined contribution
plans and state-management retirement benefit plans in
the countries in which the Group operates. Payments to
these plans, where the Group’s obligations under them are
equivalent to a defined contribution plan, are recognised as
an expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Share option schemes

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of options is recognised as an expense and
credited to share option reserve under equity. For grant of
share options, the total amount to be expensed over the
vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options at the date on which they are granted by
using a binomial model, excluding the impact of any service
condition and non-market vesting conditions. Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to become vested. From
the perspective of the Company, the Company grants the
share options to its subsidiaries’ employees to exchange for
their services provided to the subsidiaries. Accordingly, in
the Company’s statement of financial position, the equity-
settled share option expenses, which are recognised in the
Group's profit or loss, are treated as part of the “investments
in subsidiaries”.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the Group's profit or loss and in
the Company’s “investments in subsidiaries”, and makes
a corresponding adjustment to equity over the remaining
vesting period. When the options are exercised, the proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs
are credited to share capital (at nominal value) and share
premium.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

98

POLICIES (Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted
from equity when they are declared and approved by the
Company’'s shareholders in general meetings. Interim
dividends are deducted from equity when they are declared
and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company's functional currency is HK dollar while the
Company’s presentation currency for the financial statements
is Renminbi. In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

° exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

° exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’'s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

JUDGEMENT

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on
certain profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated
and distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider
that the timing of the reversal of the related temporary
differences can be controlled and such temporary differences
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the
PRC are considered to be repatriated and distributed by
way of dividends, the deferred income tax charge and
deferred income tax liability would have been increased by
the same amount of approximately RMB248,872,000 (2013:
RMB163,301,000).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group's provision policy for doubtful debts is based on
the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and aged analysis
of the outstanding receivables and on the management'’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables,
including creditworthiness and the past collection history
of each customer. If the financial conditions of the Group's
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional impairment may be
required. As at the end of reporting period, an accumulated
impairment loss of RMB40,556,000 (2013: RMB34,930,000)
has been recognised for trade receivables.

Provision for obsolete inventories

The Group reviews the aged analysis of its inventories at
the end of each reporting period, and makes provision for
obsolete and slow moving inventory items identified that
are no longer suitable for sale. The Group estimates the net
realisable value for such inventories based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. As at
the end of reporting period, an accumulated provision for
obsolescence of RMB43,228,000 (2013: RMB9,848,000) has
been recognised for inventories.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of plastic pipes and pipe fittings. For management purposes,

the

Group’s businesses are organised by geographical areas

based on the location of the customers and assets are
attributable to the geographical unit based on the location
of the assets. The Group has eight reportable operating
segments as follows:

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province
and Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu
Province and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

(viii) Qutside China.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group's
profit before tax except that exchange differences, finance
costs, interest income, gain on early redemption of held-to-
maturity investments, investment income, share of result of a
joint venture and other unallocated income and expenses are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interest in a joint venture, held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale investments, deferred
tax assets, cash and bank deposits and other unallocated head
office and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation.
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from
its operations in the PRC, special administrative regions of the
PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
revenue from transactions with a single external customer
amounted to 10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. R&5IER(H)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR HZE2014F12A3MB L FENLEE I TE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014 #
Southern  Southwestern Central Eastern Northern ~ Northwestern ~ Northeastern Outside
China China China China China China China China  Eliminations Consolidated
£H ERHE £ E5 2 EIHE RIHE hEED i &8

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR  ARMTR  ARRTZ  ARRTR  ARRTR  ARETx  ARRTn  ARRTR  ARETR  ARRTR

Segment revenue: AHEA
Sales to external customers NERPHE 8,560,750 1,444,531 1,575,898 733,953 1,018,436 574,801 389,072 454,603 - 14,752,044
Intersegment sales AHREEE 2,220,060 296,209 284,594 88,225 167,572 109,339 96,622 267,959 (3,530,580) -
10,780,810 1,740,740 1,860,492 822178 1,186,008 684,140 485,694 722,562 (3,530,580) 14,752,044

Revenue from construction I’AY

contracts WA 70,728 - - - - - - - - 70,728
Total A4 10,851,538 1,740,740 1,860,492 822,178 1,186,008 684,140 485,694 722,562 (3530,580) 14,822,772
Segment results VS 2,820,806 392,196 465,285 170,528 287,653 116,226 83,924 54,003 (589,887) 3,800,734
Reconciliations: i
Exchange loss (6,578)
Finance costs (233,0M)
Interest income HEMZ@ 74,116
Gain on early redemption of HRFEEFEENES

held-to-maturity investments RARGHE 3,194
Investment income }97 Wz 1,793
Share of profit of ajoint venture  HE—FALLMERT 398
Unallocated income and expenses *n@i%ﬁ&ﬁ % (1,793,793)
Profit before tax BB AR 1,846,793
Segment assets IBEE 6,613,198 970,751 1,017,488 558,227 556,917 586,614 492,050 405,507 - 11,200,752
Reconciliations HE:
Interest in a joint venture R-HRELENER 6,074
Held-to-maturity investments FERIERE 60,757
Available-for-sale investments qEHELE 39,466
Deferred tax asssts ERHEEE 13,577
Cash and bank deposits BERBAER 3,198,902
Total assets EESE 14,519,528
Other segment information: EfbABER
Depreciation and amortisation FERBH 222,545 35,538 50,845 25,272 29,862 39,052 29,629 7,037 - 439,780
Impairment of trade receivables, net  B5 EUFUE) ’Mﬁ,ﬂi 696 - 1,975 - (465) - - 3,420 - 5,626
Write-down of inventories to WAFEETES

net realisable value FE 31,000 - - - - - - 2,380 - 33,380
Capital expenditure® EUGHY 702,074 63,795 177,789 1121 62,730 208,798 34,812 59,805 (24,018) 1,363,512

# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # BARASZBIEREME  BERFZME BN
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and other intangible assets. HERREMELEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. R&9ILER(HE)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR BZ2013F12A3MBLLEENLE S EE
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 #
Southen  Southwestern Central Eastemn Northern  Northwestern  Northeastern QOutside
China China China China China China China China ~ Eliminations ~ Consolidated
=) ErE bl B3 £ EitE iR REED i &

RMBOOO  RMBO00  RMBO0O  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOD  RMB'00D
ABETR  ARETm ARETn ARETR ARETR ARETm ARETm \RETm ARETR  ARET:

Segment revenue: AHEA
Sales to external customers IIBRFHE 7,847,960 1,318,881 1,307,612 659,740 874,806 471,562 303,309 228372 - 13012232
Intersegment sales AHEHE 1,382,313 256,546 393,213 75,151 136,046 99,519 89,799 327,938 (2,760,525) -
9,230,273 1,575,427 1,700,825 734,891 1,010,852 571,071 393,108 556,310 (2,760,525) 13,012,232

Revenue from construction IEAY

contracts WA 58,315 - - - - - - - - 58,315
Total At 9,288,588 1,575,427 1,700,825 734,891 1,010,852 571,07 393,108 556,310 (2,760,525) 13,070,547
Segment results P E 2,283,550 363,984 428,642 156,513 227,889 113,142 66,354 97,964 (472,470) 3,265,568
Reconciliations: i
Exchange gain B R 44,009
Finance costs BERK 151,003)
Interest income gk 70,586
(Gain on early redemption of HRFEEFEENES

held-to-maturity investments RARGHE 2,864
Share of profit of a joint venture ~ HE—FARREET 390
Unallocated income and expenses  AARMERER (1,464,903)
Profit before tax iyl 1,767,511
Segment assets AHEE 5,653,271 778,407 995,223 547,182 512,218 671,442 555,901 230,982 - 9,844,626
Reconciliations: HE:
Interest in a joint venture R-BAELENES 5,676
Held-to-maturity investments BAZHERE 249,001
Deferred tax assets EfeEE 9,162
Cash and bank deposits BERBTER 2,189,242
Total assets EELE 12,297,707
Other segment information: AEAHER !
Depreciation and amortisation FEREH 181,813 31,641 40,011 21,301 28,550 27,318 22,876 6,808 - 360,338
Impairment of trade receivables, net B RENFETETE 12,750 - (359) - 8,180 - - 1574 S 22,145
Write-down of inventories to WAREZER

net realisable value FE 9,591 - - - - - - 257 - 9,848
Capital expenditure# ERER# 1,016,603 126,297 148,415 150,892 68,283 64,057 42,554 17,671 (16,910) 1,617,862

# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and # BAMTBERBYE  BMERSDRE BT
equipment, prepaid land lease payments and other intangible assets. HEH R EMMEREE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND WA~ Htlg A - IRER A=
GAINS
Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents the WATNEBREBRNEHESE  BRENHEES
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns MmEEEEEFE  SHNBREENRE ST
and trade discounts (net of value-added tax, if any), and an (RIBEER(NE)) RIRBEHZE
appropriate proportion of contract revenue from construction DU ARBEE B o
contracts during the year.
An analysis of the Group's revenue, other revenue, income AEBHKA « A - W kA= 9
and gains is as follows: M
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Revenue WA
Sale of goods HESm 14,752,044 13,012,232
Revenue from construction contracts TEAEHKA 70,728 58,315
14,822,772 13,070,547
Other revenue, income and gains Hag A - SR Fi=
Bank interest income HRITH B E 36,378 23,067
Interest income from held-to-maturity investments #55 Z || Hi1& & 89 71 2 i 25 37,738 47,519
Total interest income B S B RE 74,116 70,586
Government grants and subsidies TR Bh N Bh 22,157 20,769
Gain on early redemption of held-to-maturity  #12 £ & B354 & 5 H
investments KBS &= 3,194 2,864
Investment income HEW = 1,793 -
Exchange gain (R = 44,009
Others HAtb 14,856 17,247
116,116 155,475
Government grants and subsidies mainly represented funding BT B N i BE T B TR IS T A
received from government authorities to support certain of BEREBRETFHEEFTNES » WET [ H
the Group's research and development activities. There are no ZEmB BB R ER S ABIE
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants S e
and subsidies.
6. FINANCE COSTS BlE KA
2014 2013
20144 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Interest on: ITEERFE
Bank loans IRITER 72,701 16,082
The Senior Notes B ZEE 67,600 134,921
Total interest expenses BB 140,301 151,003
Premium and unamortised issuance R ERELEERA
expenses arising from the early (B M AR BT
redemption of the Senior Notes 5 92,770 -
233,071 151,003
1 06 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited A BB %8 & BiZE R SR A 7)



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBIATER
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBBG AR IYEHE (5T A) 5
(crediting): FIRBER
2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
= AR¥TT ARETTT
Cost of inventories sold EEFEKRE 10,925,108 9,745,014
Direct cost of construction work TREENAE 63,550 50,117
Depreciation e 12 408,915 336,839
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 8 {<f + #h & 2k 5% 13 21,608 18,193
Amortisation of other intangible assets Htnmp EE#E 9,257 5,306
Total depreciation and amortisation e Mg eEE 439,780 360,338
Research and development costs® T 35 Bk A 457,850 244,202
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of land, HE+IH - HthEREERN
other intangible assets and property, Mm% MEKREER
plant and equipment gER/ (Flzm) 6,690 (5,776)
Gain from a bargain purchase HZEWEMEF R - (157)
Minimum lease payments under operating T RIEFELEHER
leases in respect of land and buildings HEEE 23,136 22,237
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B B 5 B 4,476 4,321
Employee benefit expense (including RERFAZ(BREEEHMH
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (Kizx8)) -
Wages and salaries TERE® 559,886 465,345
Equity-settled share option expense PARRIE 5 B Hy B AR R F S 29 - 5,757
Pension scheme contributions RS FT IR 52,900 50,999
Staff welfare and other expenses BETRAEEMAS 48,768 39,924
661,554 562,025
Write-down of inventories to net realisable #{Fi7F & % A &1
value RE 33,380 9,848
Impairment of trade receivables, net* B Z IR REF R 19 5,626 22,145
Net rental income HelmFE (452) (2,909)
Foreign exchange differences, net [EHERFE 6,578 (44,009)
# Research and development costs and the impairment of trade # KRR E 5 EYKRIEREF RS R8s A0

receivables, net are included in the “other expenses” in profit or loss. [Emp] o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8 EEZFMEiABERaFHFMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) E=FHH
Directors’ remuneration for the year is as follows: FRNEEHFMEY T :
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Fees e 2,453 2,478
Other emoluments: EHE
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EBLREWER 3,672 3,335
Performance related bonuses RIFBMHTEAT 2,972 464
Equity-settled share option expense AR A E R B AR B 52 - 1,064
Pension scheme contributions IRIREFT SR 246 241
6,890 5,104
9,343 7,582
In the prior years, certain directors were granted share RBEFE  BTEEREARQRERERT
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under 2 SR AEEIRENRGERBR
the Company’s share option scheme. The fair value of o ZEERENAABERETHRESE
such options, which has been recognised in profit or WHRERB N IER NHER - MIIA E—FF
loss over the vesting period, was determined as at the PBMENSEHINR ENEETHTMHEEA -

date of grant and the amount included in the prior year's
financial statements is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8 EEZFMIrIEZH=SFMEES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHM(E)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out LBEEMH N T ¢
below:
Salaries,
allowances  Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share option scheme
Fees in kind honuses expense  contributions Total
e 2l NREEE
fie RENEN  RESSMTA  NBRERX BRHSTHER st
2014 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
0145 ARET R ARETR ARETR N A ARET T ARET T
Executive directors: 7%
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BEELE - 570 231 - 13 814
Mr. Zuo Manlun LIRS - 524 215 - 2 826
Ms. Zuo Kiaoping EEERT - 570 231 - 13 814
Mr. Lai Zhigiang Brang - 300 500 - 33 833
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KBS E - 300 500 - 33 833
Mr. Chen Guonan BBl 4 238 60 504 - 45 847
Dr. Lin Shaoguan wheEt - 1,048 - - 9 1,057
Mr. Huang Guirong BEREE - 300 500 - 60 860
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRlEng 570 - 231 - 13 814
808 3,672 2972 - 246 7,698
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lin Dewei Gty 360 - - - - 360
Independent BUET
non-executive directors: %
Dr. Bai Chongen HERBT 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEERE 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho,
Jonathan TAz%E 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Cheung Man Yu FXFLE 257 - - - - 257
Mr. Gao Lixin® BUHTE 257 - - - - 257
1,285 - - - - 1,285
2,453 3,672 2972 - 246 9,343
# Resigned as independent non-executive director on # H2015F1 A1 HBHEE I EHITES

1 January 2015.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8 EEZFMIrEZHaFMEES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEHM(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Performance  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits relasted  share option scheme
Fees inkind bonuses expense  contributions Total
Be 2K WRiERS

g REWERF  RRAMEL  OBRERR  RIESHEIER st
2013 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20135 ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTR AEBTR AREFT
Executive directors: 7%
Mr. Wong Luen Hei ElERE - 575 152 - 12 739
Mr. Zuo Manlun TRk - 557 48 214 28 847
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping EXERT - 575 48 128 12 763
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BEans - 300 2% 128 33 486
Mr. Kong Zhaocong KBS E - 300 2% 128 33 486
Mr. Chen Guonan REIm %L 240 60 %5 107 45 477
Dr. Lin Shaoquan wh2EL - 668 67 107 9 851
Mr. Huang Guirong EERLE - 300 2% 107 57 489
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRELE 575 - 49 107 12 743

815 3,335 464 1,026 24 5,881
Non-executive director: FHTES:
Mr. Lin Dewei hEEEL 363 - - 38 - 401
Independent Bukgm

non-executive directors: N
Dr. Bai Chongen REBRT 260 - - - - 260
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung BEERE 260 - - - - 260
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho,

Jonathan IRZRE 260 - - - - 260
Mr. Cheung Man Yu FXFLE 260 - - - - 260
Mr. Gao Lixin [SE i 260 - - - - 260

1,300 - - - - 1,300
2,478 3,335 464 1,064 U 7,582
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8 EEZFMIrIEZH=SFMEES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EE=HME)
No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument BEEENENREWETAHNS
and no emoluments were paid by the Group to the mARSE BN E A E) B AREE s E
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the MBAEERSIEABEBRMBEmMRE
Group or as compensation for loss of office. EX M EMBE -
There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the FRAMECHXNEN FEBILIERNTE
independent non-executive directors during the year EREMEHMEN S (20134 - &) -
(2013: Nil).
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (B) mEmaHMES
The Group's five highest paid employees during the year FAN - AEBREERFWNEES A
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these BE RNERNZSEEENNEFIEH
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above. RS EES(A) ©
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEHRExX
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBT T
Current Tax BVEARR 18
Hong Kong BE 1,999 2,158
PRC F 368,442 346,087
Other jurisdiction Hihal AR 442 -
370,883 348,245
Overprovision in prior years BEFEAEEE
PRC hE (50,157) (26,546)
Deferred Tax (note 25) IERERIA (MI5E25) (14,291) 8,196
Total tax charge for the year FARIAERE 306,435 329,895
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on REFERNEBRKE QTR G E R EZER
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which AR A EETELE SIS ERER
members of the Group are domiciled and operate. SELUINET ISR o
HONG KONG PROFITS TAX EBFEH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EBFNER B EMEAEEEEEELEN
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for SHER RS AT = 16.5% B4 o
both years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR 5T )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

9.

112

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group’s income tax provision in respect of its operations
in mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax
rates on the taxable profits for both years, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with
the prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
majority of the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax expense at the effective tax rate is as follows:

FrEsMAx @)

R EAREH
AEBEDRIEMEFENERTEN - AH
MORALE  REREIREE  RER
BERGHE BN EF TS HBHE -

R EME 2 8RR
AR E R TR 2 BORRBT R EA
£ BT L 2 T AR E T R
FABLREE -

RAARRBARED KB QB PTERDEERE
FEB R S E RO IE AR BR A BE A A B TR B 32
R EREREAEORAEROERENT

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARTT AREBTT
Profit before tax LA F 1,846,793 1,767,511
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax rate RPBM MBI E25%ER
of 25% BiiE 461,698 441,878
Effect of tax concessions for certain HTHEARFEEEN
subsidiaries g (193,088) (158,337)
Share of profit of a joint venture DME—HEELERN (99) (97)
Income not subject to tax AP (9,458) (16,775)
Expenses not deductible for tax TAHIHF X 40,444 39,380
Tax losses utilised from prior years e AMBTFFERIEBEER (2,871) (5,881)
Tax losses not recognised RIERTIAEGE 47,773 21,330
Adjustments in respect of current tax MBAFEFERVIED
of prior years Bk (50,157) (26,546)
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on HARRBIFRRANE R A
the distributable profits of the Company's A 3K ) 425 % Bk
subsidiaries in the PRC BRAEHNTE 12,193 34,943
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAREEBRMRTENTHIESL H 306,435 329,895

& Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, i

administrative expenses and other expenses.

EHERDHAX  THAXMEMRT X8
#BAN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

10. DIVIDENDS 10. RE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AR®ET T
Dividends recognised as distributions RERERAED IR E
during the year: 2013 final — HK12 cents 2013F RHARR B — &K
(2013: 2012 final - HK12 cents) w1 2780 (20134 -
per ordinary share 2012F REAIR B —127810) 295,460 291,809
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend R ERE  EFEZHEMNBE2014512
of HK13 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December A31 8 IEFEIRN REAREFR L EA 3
2014 (2013: final dividend of HK12 cents in respect of the BAI(20134F - HE2013F 12 A31HILF
year ended 31 December 2013) per ordinary share has been ERREREEFR L BIX1280) » HAERE
proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by the REREERERAEAS FHER - eIk
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. fif o

11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 11. ZATEEAELERER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of the basic and the diluted earnings per BIEBEATSEFEFRERARESRT
share are based on:

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMET T ARBT T
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to owners of STESRERREER TR
the Company used in the basic BRNEAREER A
and diluted earnings per share calculation JE 1% F| 1,554,024 1,449,261
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR 5T )

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H

11.

114

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

M. AR HEEAELERERN @)

Number of Shares

iidvip-gE|
2014 2013
20145 20134
Shares iav
Weighted average number of ordinary shares &5 &A% E 7R 2 58 B 2 #)
of the Company in issue used in the basic NAFRIEBEITE MR IR
earnings per share calculation 8 3,099,037,511 3,050,089,873

Effect of dilution — weighted average number B#5E4E — L @A NEF 198

iy

of ordinary shares: share options

6,541,402 38,037,067

3,105,578,913 3,088,126,940

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2014 includes 3,075,731,740 ordinary shares in issue as at
31 December 2013 (2013: 3,033,602,350 ordinary shares
in issue as at 31 December 2012) and 23,305,771 shares
(2013: 16,487,523 shares) derived from the weighted average
of 34,523,660 ordinary shares (2013: 42,129,390 ordinary
shares) issued upon the exercise of share options.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited 1 BB %8 & @R AR A 7

BAUEFEEE2014F 12831 B IEFED
BRERZBFHBR O MEFHE - 2R
2013412 A31 B E #77/93,075,731,740
i & @BA% (20134 « R2012F12A31HE
2% 1TH93,033,602,350 A% i@ AL ) R 1TFE
% #E 1% 2% 17 89 34,523,660 % I i@ A% (2013
& 1 42,129,3900% 3@ ) & pnkE I
BN23,305,771 &A% % (20134 : 16,487,523
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y%  BERKE

Furniture,
fixtures Construction
Land and Plantand  and office Motor  Leasehold in
buildings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles improvements progress Total
8 #E
tHREF  BERHE RELERE RE  RENERE ERIE Azt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARKTR ARMTR ARBTR  ARWTR  ARET:R
Cost: RA:
At 1 January 2013 20131418 1,229,602 1,940,549 53,085 104,265 6,905 669,058 4,003,464
Additions AE 114,809 306,591 15,068 14,214 415 796,304 1,247,401
Acquisitions of subsidiaries YEEHE L7 169,265 69,908 3,701 1,699 - 30,503 275,076
Transfers Eige 453,706 96,450 5,265 3,658 - (559,079) -
Disposals e (5,849) (30,906) (973) (2,549) (831) (752) (41,860)
Exchange realignment ERAE (412) (1.416) (413) (311) (346) (10 (2,908
At 31 December 2013 and R2013E 128318 R
1 January 2014 01451718 1,961,121 2,381,176 75,733 120,976 6,143 936,024 5,481,173
Additions ME 68,274 128,493 18,846 30,627 422 913,544 1,160,206
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHBAR
note 30) (P30 45,533 27,587 180 299 - 92 74,561
Transfers B 312,421 293,585 14,218 1474 - (621,698) -
Disposals HE (6,157) (19,901) (2,121) (2,150) 2,591) (2,356) (35,276
Exchange realignment i 5 32 124 70 46 37 1 310
At 31 December 2014 #2014512A4318 2,381,224 2,811,064 106,926 151,272 4,011 1,226,477 6,680,974
Accumulated depreciation: ZiHE:
At 1 January 2013 20131718 (158,570) (474,645) (22,882) (55,513) (3,593) - (715,203)
Provided for the year TERER (68,017)  [220,941) (12,174) (15,366 (351) - (336,839)
Disposals HE 1,233 17,541 849 2,040 831 - 22,494
Exchange realignment 5 BE 48 140 59 13 2% - 484
At 31 December 2013 and R013ENANER
1 January 2014 01451718 (245,306) (677,905) (34,148 (68,616) (3,089) - (1,029,064)
Provided for the year RERHR (1208800 (223,969) (39,919) (23,681) (466) - (408,915)
Disposals HE 5,136 10,044 1,62 1473 2,591 - 20,869
Exchange realignment E5EE 3) (99) (14) (128) (6) = (250)
At 31 December 2014 2014127318 (361,053) (891,929) (72,456) (90,952) (970) - (1,417,360)
Net carrying amount: BEFE
At 31 December 2014 20145127318 2,020,171 1,919,135 34,470 60,320 3,041 1,226,477 5,263,614
At 31 December 2013 #2013%12R31H 1,715,815 1,703,271 41,585 52,360 3,054 936,024 4,452,109

AEEGFTAME « BEME&HE L2 8R®m
FEAAREG73,0007T(20134F « £) » %
TR BB BN IR A EREEE -

The Group's land included in property, plant and equipment
with a net carrying amount of RMB673,000 (2013: Nil) is
situated outside Hong Kong and is held under freehold.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014
2014912 A31H

13. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

13. AN THAER

2014 2013

201445 20134

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

ihg=2 AR¥T R AREET T

At 1 January »1HA1TH 1,018,319 974,943

Additions NE 86,343 27,114

Acquisitions of subsidiaries W EEHT B A A 30 31,656 38,804

Disposals i (5,110) (4,349)

Provided for the year REFEEZEHRE 7 (21,608) (18,193)

At 31 December W12 A31H 1,109,600 1,018,319
Analysed for reporting purpose as: LBEEMDTA

Non-current assets ERBEE 1,087,126 996,690

Current assets included in FFARBEER

prepayments, deposits and AR EZe2k

other receivables H i e W gkE 20 22,474 21,629

1,109,600 1,018,319

The leasehold land is situated in mainland China and is held HE AP EAH - AR EHEER
under a medium-term lease. FEp

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND 14. RHEBATNREREMNE R AL

BALANCES WITH SUBSIDIARIES 153

2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRD + AR = -
Advances to subsidiaries Bl NG E=E 3,164,400 2,493,185

Capital contribution in respect of employee  LARRH AEFE A& B FH I
share-based compensation FE 80,380 80,110
3,244,780 2,573,295

B s U8 IESNEIE oF = A DL A NCTE=F
B A FR#3,164,400,0007T (20134F - AR
#2,493,185,0007T ) & EE I - &£ BN E
EEERE -

The advances to subsidiaries of RMB3,164,400,000
(2013: RMB2,493,185,000) included in the investments in
subsidiaries above are unsecured, interest-free and have no
fixed terms of repayment.

m—E B AR E KA R1,358,537,000
7o (20134 « AR¥1,357,741,00070) B
BIF - BHREARBITAMIBERANERE
EFEHR0.81 %512 HAR2016F(EE ©

The loans to a subsidiary of RMB1,358,537,000 (2013:
RMB1,357,741,000) are unsecured, bearing interest at 0.81%
below the applicable benchmark lending rates announced by
the People’s Bank of China and are repayable in 2016.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

15. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 15. R—EaEbENER
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Share of net assets DIREEFRE 6,074 5,676
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: BEDTERNFEROT :
Percentage of
BRI
Place of
Registered registration Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name capital and business interest power sharing activity
a7 afER HEMREXNE  EEEER REE gl TEER
Guangdong Lesso EPCO RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50 Provision of
Residential Equipment AK™10,000,0007T HE household
Design Services Co., Ltd.* decoration
ERBEBREER design work and
REtREBRAF maintenance
services
RERERMRE
RIERE
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TEREVAREBREELEEaMWER ¢
interest in the joint venture:
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTTT
Share of joint venture's: DG ERE
Profit from continuing operations FEE S TSR T 398 390
Other comprehensive income Em2mlas - =
Total comprehensive income 2HE LR 398 390
Annual Report 2014 45§ 1 1 7



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H

16. HELD-TO-MATURITY INVESTMENTS 16. EEZZHKRE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBT T
Debt securities, at amortised cost: BB HEK AT BERNERES
Listed in Hong Kong BABLEM 24,072 -
Listed in Singapore FNsE L 36,685 249,001
60,757 249,001
Analysed for reporting purpose as: MBEENDITA
Non-current assets EMEEE 30,383 231,650
Current assets mBEE 30,374 17,351
60,757 249,001
The held-to-maturity investments represent debt securities. BEZINBPRERERES - ZFEFHFN
These securities carry fixed interest at 8.00% to 13.00% B IR EEF FE8.00%£13.00% 7T &
(2013: 9.38% to 13.75%) per annum, payable semi-annually (20134 : 938% £ 13.75% ) * ¥ F X
in arrears, and will mature from October 2015 to March 2019 - #2015 10 A =20194 3 A 2
(2013: March 2014 to April 2018). (20134 : 2014F3 A E2018F4 1) -
As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group's held-to- M2014F 128310 - AEBRE®FE
maturity investments with an aggregate net carrying amount A AR ¥30,374,00070 (20134 : ARM
of RMB30,374,000 (2013: RMB242,667,000) were pledged to 242,667,0007C) KA THREZIHKED
a bank to secure the banking facility granted to the Company. MIRITHERER QAR ERRITRIENER -
The Company has not utilised this banking facility as at 31 MR2014F12A8318 » AR AIMESHHZIR
December 2014 (2013: Nil). 1TREE (20134 : &) -
17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. AIEHERE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
Group & Company REBERANT AR¥ET T ARETTT
Listed equity investments, at fair value FHRAEE(EAREE)
Hong Kong B 39,466 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

17. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 17. HEHEERE @)
(Continued)
The available-for-sale investments represent non-cumulative AIHEEREEEBR2EEFHAZXSHTF
preference shares of counterparties with Ba2 credit rating. HIEZFEELIE - ZEELRIRILER|EEA -

These preference shares have no maturity date.

As at 31 December 2014, certain of the Group's available-for- R2014%F12 8310 ' AEBAEEESE
sale investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of A ANRMS 088,0007T(2013%F  E)NET
RMB5,088,000 (2013: Nil) were pledged to a bank to secure A ERED RMRTEBIERQARERE
the banking facility granted to the Company. The Company TRVERVER - B2014F12A318 » AR
has not utilised this banking facility as at 31 December 2014 A EES R ZRITRIE (20134F « #£) o
(2013: Nil).
18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
2014 2013
2014% 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETTT
Raw materials R R 931,957 1,159,341
Work in progress TE® 256,227 231,976
Finished goods ERK & 1,021,854 1,042,732
2,210,038 2,434,049
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. ESEKWFERERE
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETIT
Trade receivables E 5 MR IE 1,127,901 854,518
Bills receivable FEUNZE I 216,231 218,041
Less: Provision for impairment R E RS (40,556) (34,930)
1,303,576 1,037,629
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. EZRRAREREE @)

The Group's major customers are independent distributors,
civil contractors, property developers, utility companies and
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the
customers, the Group's trading terms with its independent
distributors may change from settlement on an advance
receipt basis to giving a credit period of generally one
month or more, if appropriate. The Group does not have a
standardised and universal credit period granted to the non-
distributor customers. The credit period of an individual non-
distributor customer is considered on a case-by-case basis and
is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. Sales to small,
new, or short-term customers are normally expected to be
settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly after the goods
delivery. No credit term period is set by the Group for small,
new and short-term customers.

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables as

at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date
and net of provisions, is as follows:

AEENEREF /TEAMEE LD H
B EARTRARRE  FEHERED A8
EXRRT NN - AEERFTR W
SR M ERE P RER - AT EEET DH
BOEZERBRAN T AEEERSERT
—R—EAXZEANERHBR(EE)
AREBEWEBF—FFDHEAELE TREN
ERHIR - @RIZED HEE P =R RRR
FEBIERME - WHEEARF IR0
BE) HRE  FREREPHEE—
BIBHARN T AN EREHRGEH -
AREBIWES/NRE - IREHEPRIUE
FAHEAMR -

BHREFANERY REERLRE -

RIERR - ARENE 5 R EHERRE
REZ AU MBRFRORESTOT

2014 2013

20144 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T AR®ETTT

Within 3 months 3fE AR 722,607 609,315
4 to 6 months 4% 618 A 302,968 284,077
7 to 12 months 7E121E A 173,891 103,761
1 to 2 years 1226 93,031 36,359
2 to 3 years 2&E3F 9,435 3,350
Over 3 years 3FLAE 1,644 767
1,303,576 1,037,629
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 19. ESEUZRIER ZHE (#)
The movements in the provision for impairment of the Group's NEBEZESEKTIBHREREGNE S0
trade receivables are as follows: ™

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
At 1 January R1A1H 34,930 13,085
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) EHERREEE () 5,626 22,145
Amounts written off as uncollectible s R TR E R SR - (300)
At 31 December Mm12H318 40,556 34,930
The above provision of RMB40,556,000 (2013: RMB34,930,000) [t B 45 A R % 40,556,0007T (20134 -
is for individually impaired trade receivables with their aggregate /\E@ﬁ34,930,000ﬁ)?ﬁ%ﬁzmﬁﬁﬁ%v@ﬁ
carrying amount before provision of RMB41,816,000 (2013: 7,%/\&%41,816,000775\(2013¢ PARE
RMB38,212,000). The individually impaired trade receivables 38,212,0007T) K ERIREE 2 fE W KT8 1E
relate to customers that are in default or delinquency in o B RIEE E 2 R R IE B 4) s 38 R AT
payments. HOEFEB -
The aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills receivables AREFB@EEERFAEATREEHEE S
that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be FEU R IE N EEAERS® DT -

impaired is as follows:

2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREET T
Neither past due nor impaired KEE TR BE 922,937 847,872
Past due but not impaired: B AR M ARORE ¢
Less than 3 months past due %0 B3 D R 3E A 199,537 79,544
4 to 6 months past due w4 Z6{E A 56,022 35,953
7 to 12 months past due wE7E 1218 A 94,894 59,055
1 to 2 years past due mHE1 226 22,273 5,870
2 to 3 years past due BE2 = 3F 6,653 6,053
1,302,316 1,034,347
Receivables that are neither past due nor impaired relate to a RBEAN AR BENERFTIBEEZIAEERE
large number of diversified customers for whom there is no B R P im i MM R 22 8E o
recent history of default.
Receivables that are past due but not impaired relate to 2R EERENEIRGIEAS TBEYEP
a number of independent customers that have a good B REHEAERNTSILHERLT - B
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, B\EKE  EF2RA ARFEERPEZEE
the directors believe that no provision for impairment is =W mBEE(L - BEAR A KE K
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been B - FEBERZEESIED BERME -

a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR 5T )

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. FER

BERHEMEWRKE

RECEIVABLES

2014 2013
201445 20134
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
= ARET T ARETFT
Prepayments ICENE S 337,622 462,623

Current portion of prepaid land lease  TE{J + 1 E R
payments mENER 13 22,474 21,629
Value-added tax recoverable FE AL E R 153,441 157,359
Corporate income tax recoverable FIRINEATER 3,708 4,138
Deposits b 19,907 23,778
Other receivables H b U Fhi1E 34,790 50,825
571,942 720,352

The financial assets included in the above balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

21. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Pl#ESReEmRNeREENEER 28K

B [E] R K

glqo

21. BERBITER

2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
Group REE ARET T ARETIT
Restricted cash: ZRFRE
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities EARITRENERIZS 582,838 669,104
Time deposits with original maturity of more FEHFH(REERE
than three months when acquired BE={EA) 85,060 16,957
Cash and cash equivalents: RERBLEEY :
Time deposits with original maturity of TFEFR(REHR
three months or less when acquired AB=EASAT) 1,605,234 35,114
Cash and bank balances IRe MIRTTH R 925,770 1,468,067
2,531,004 1,503,181
Cash and bank deposits Be RIRITFER 3,198,902 2,189,242
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

21. CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS (Continued) 21. RERBVITER @)
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
Company PN/ ARET T AR®ET T
Restricted cash: ZRHIEE
Guarantee deposits for banking facilities ERIRITRENERES - 283,043
Time deposits with original maturity of more FHIFR(RA R
than three months when acquired HmE={EAa) - 16,957
Cash and cash equivalents: ReRBLEEY
Time deposits with original maturity of TERFR(RE AR
three months or less when acquired B=EAZAT) 104,346 26,760
Cash and bank balances Re MIRITA & 12,493 10,653
116,839 37,413
Cash and bank deposits B4 MIRITER 116,839 337,413
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily FHRIRITRIR € E BRI TR ERMZ
bank deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for B FI| & R AR B, o RHAE BB A ERRR T
varying periods between one day and twelve months and 1 RE12E A T FEWIRZ G HEBHFERFE
earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit rates. BRENF B o RITABR LI R HIR ST AR
The bank balances and restricted cash are deposited with BB B EERITARIT -

creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 22. ESRNRERERE
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Trade payables E SR FIE 373,925 349,495
Bills payable B =R 599,462 511,921
973,387 861,416
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014
2014912 A31H

22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 22. EFENREREE(#E)

BHRNFATLRE - EZREBOTFIER
HAMR /30Z90H -

The trade payables are interest-free. The average credit period
for trade purchases is 30 to 90 days.

RIERR  AEENEHERMNRBERRE
HERBHRERDITOT -

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is

as follows:

2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREETTT
Within 3 months 3MEAN 690,755 350,338
4 to 6 months 472 6{E A 267,183 505,157
7 to 12 months 7E1218 A 6,794 1,299
1 to 2 years 1229 4,993 3,867
2 to 3 years 2E3F 3,420 755
Over 3 years 3FLA 242 -
973,387 861,416

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HittENFHERENEA
2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AR®ET T
Advances from customers BR8N 897,739 681,436
Accruals FEFT &R 39,219 41,420
Salaries and welfare payables JET & R AE T 108,955 97,712
Contingent consideration arrangement RARELHE = 1,965
Other payables H fib jE A~ 500E 518,377 430,141
1,564,290 1,252,674

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

24. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24, SRITERKEMER
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
Group REE ARET T ARETT
Current RED
Unsecured bank loans IR ITE R 1,114,898 693,025
Current portion of long-term REPEIEFIRTERN
unsecured bank loans mENER D 43,831 387,067
1,158,729 1,080,092
Non-current R
Unsecured bank loans IR 1T E X 265,479 61,200
Unsecured syndicated loans IR EE 1,755,626 -
The Senior Notes BHRERE - 1,545,824
2,021,105 1,607,024
3,179,834 2,687,116
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
Group AEME AR¥ET T ARBT T
Analysed into bank loans repayable: BERBRTER
Within one year or on demand —F R R EKE 1,158,729 1,080,092
In the second year E-FNR 56,107 61,200
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-FEFRAFAN(BRREEEMFE) 1,964,998 -
3,179,834 1,141,292
Analysed into other borrowings repayable: ZB(E3i8 bk
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEEFERAFRN(BREERME) - 1,645,824
3,179,834 2,687,116
2014 2013
20145 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
Company KATF AR®T T AREET T
Current RE
Unsecured bank loans EIRRIRITER 645,418 170,272
Current portion of long-term RAFEIRIRITE R
unsecured bank loan mBE = 325,892
645,418 496,164
Non-current 13578
Unsecured bank loan EIIRERITE X 91,886 —
Unsecured syndicated loans IR ER B B 3k 1,755,626 =
The Senior Notes BREE = 1,645,824
1,847,512 1,545,824
2,492,930 2,041,988
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31 December 2014

2014512 A31H

24. BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS 24. $RITERK

H &5 (@)

(Continued)
2014 2013
20144 2013%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
Company AT AR¥ET T ARBT T
Analysed into bank loans repayable: BERBRITER
Within one year or on demand —F R AR E KA 645,418 496,164
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEERAFRN(BREERME) 1,847,512 -
2,492,930 496,164
Analysed into other borrowings repayable: ZB{E &1 J@{ﬁ;ﬁ\
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FoFEFRAFRN(BREERME) - 1,545,824
2,492,930 2,041,988

Notes: B sE

(a)  The effective interest rates on the Group's bank borrowings range from (a) AEBBTERZEBRFNENF117% 2
1.17% t0 5.60% (2013: 1.21% to 6.30%) per annum. 5.60% 1% (20134 : 1.21%£6.30%) °
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group's bank borrowings are REEBR - NEBUET - B - ARER
denominated in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi and other currencies at EmERAENRITEREESIAARE
aggregate amounts of RMB2,395,795,000 (2013: RMB507,475,000), 2,395,795,00071(2013¢ © AR #507,475,000
RMB734,015,000 (2013: RMB483,708,000), RMB50,000,000 (2013: JT) ~ AR#734,015,0007C (20134 : AR
RMB150,109,000) and RMB24,000 (2013:Nil), respectively. 483,708,000 T ) * A K #¥50,000,0007t (2013

£ : AR¥150,109,0007T) & A R#24,0007T
(20134 : #&) -

(b)  The Senior Notes were listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities (b) BEZBERIMEZLFZSMBRAA LT
Trading Limited. They carried interest at 7.875% per annum (effective FEBERFENETILINtE(BEREFENE A
interest rate at 8.63% per annum), payable semi-annually in arrears 8.63% ) ' WHMGA1BH K11 A13HEXFX
on 13 May and 13 November, and will mature on 13 May 2016 unless 5+ BRIEIRATAER - B ZEN2016F5413H
redeemed earlier. The Company can at its option redeem all or a portion BIER o ARA AR BTEERA R A AT R AR
of the Senior Notes at any time prior to the maturity date in accordance BEBHZEL 2B ELERE - BEER
with the purchase agreement. For key terms of the redemption option, EEROFERK  B2HARRN2011E58
please refer to the Company’s announcement on issuance of the Senior SHEBEITELERERTENAE -

Notes dated 8 May 2011.
The Senior Notes were guaranteed by certain of the Company's BAZEBHARRE THEARMRBEWLIAZER
subsidiaries and secured by a first-priority fixed charge over the shares of HRBOMBEABNRN AE—EEETEHIE -
those subsidiaries providing such guarantee.
During the year, the Group has early redeemed the Senior Notes FR - AEERABLELRE  BREHES
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the E/\\@%ﬁﬁfﬂOO%$$§EZ58,880,000%E($H§?
Senior Notes of US$258,880,000 (approximately RMB1,590,552,000 RH AR %1,5690,652,0007T) @ 2 M0iE % B
equivalent) plus the applicable premium of US$10,194,000 (equivalent to 10,194,000% 7t (HHE M AR #67,354,0007T) °
RMB67,354,000).
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

25. DEFERRED TAX 25. RIEFIE

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised and their movements during the current and prior

UTFARKEER E—FEERANEEE
RREEE (2 RAE

years:
Withholding
Fair value tax on
adjustments  distributable
Provision for  Accelerated  Decelerated arising from profits of
impairment tax tax  acquisition of subsidiaries Deferred
of assets  depreciation depreciation  asubsidiary in the PRC income Total
WERBLR FEKEAR
BEN SIMABE  ADREAN
AERGE NERERE EARERE AR ERASH BENE it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARKTR ARMTr AREBTn  ARKTR  ARET:x
At 1 January 2013 R2013E1 718 1,754 284 - (3,301) 61,334) 1,537 (61,060}
Credited/(charged) to the profitor 3t A/(H18)EE B
loss for the year (note 9) (Hx9) 5,564 - (402) 186 13,567)° 2 (8,196
At 31 December 2013 and R2013E12A31A R
1 January 2014 201451518 7,318 284 (402) (3,115) (74,901) 1,560 (69,256
Credited/(charged) to the profitor 5 A/(H1E)EEE%
loss for the year (note 9) (Fi¥9) 4,087 160 (1,087) 240 10,723 (32) 14,291
At 31 December 2014 R2014E12A31H 11,605 444 (1,489) (2,875) (64,178) 1,528 (54,965)
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB12,193,000 # Z e AN R F R B E A 7R 2R FE L

(2013: RMB34,943,000) on the distributable profits of the Company's
subsidiaries in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities
of RMB22,916,000 (2013: RMB21,376,000) arising from dividends
declared by these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year.

FIE R B B AR #512,193,0007T (20134 -
AR 34,943,000 ) I LIRS 2 S B A RIR
FARBIMEEESRREMELND ERET
HIEEEARE22916,0007T (20134 : AR
21,376,0007L) °

2014 2013
2014%F 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Gross deferred tax assets recognised REBS B RA
in the consolidated statement of ERRNELEHIBEE
financial position pkc) 13,677 9,162
Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised RERE P BEMRREKA
in the consolidated statement of HRRRLEHRIEAE
financial position #aza (68,542) (78,418)
(54,965) (69,256)
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25.

26.

128

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1
January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a
tax treaty between mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in mainland
China in respect of their earnings generated from 1 January
2008.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax liabilities of RMB248,872,000 (2013: RMB163,301,000) in
respect of temporary differences relating to the undistributed
profits of subsidiaries, amounting to RMB4,977,446,000 (2013:
RMB3,266,019,000), that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by
the Group as financial subsidies for its construction of new
factory premises in Changchun and Daging and rental income
received in advance from certain of the Group's employees for
leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over
the expected useful lives of the relevant properties by equal
annual installments, while rental income received in advance
is recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective
lease terms.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited 1 BB %8 & @R AR A 7
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RIBRBEREERE - £ B A LAY
INEREMINEIEE E T IR S BB R
10% K TEIRFTIS A o 5% E B 20084F 1 A1
Bfe4AR - MAMNBE2007F12A31HiEE
BEAEF - P BRREZINEIRE E T
AEERABFRIHBIELY - BIAHESRER X
BRTERFIBH - MAEEME - MAMNIE
RFIEHRHEEAE% - At SRR EH
AR 32 &I BT B A B 3E20084F 1 A1 H AT
BEAMMDIENKREME - AEBEBMNTE
IRFTSH °

R2014F12 A31H » ARA R B 42 #
ZEWBARMKERE  BZE %A
RA] B ERDIRA A GEIET K - ASE
B EBERZEMB LR RD K =M
BFEEAAR®4977,446,000 T (2013
# 0 AR #3,266,019,000 7T ) # i fE 5
HEEA(ANDIRZSRE EFESA)
AR #248,872,0007T (20134 : AR
163,301,0007T) ©

I SE W 3

B R A R B W R BT /B - {ERE
EREBERAE B2 TR ¥ B -
UkBEAEEETREBELURHEEST
BEEHESWA -
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27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2014 2013
SHARES v 20145 20134
Authorised: ETE
20,000,000,000 (2013: 20,000,000,000(2013% :
20,000,000,000) ordinary shares 20,000,000,000) B% & B E (& HK$1,000,000,000  HK$1,000,000,000
of HK$0.05 each 0.0578 7T H) T 17 f% 1,000,000,00058 5t  1,000,000,0007% T
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAE
3,110,255,400 (2013: 3,110,255,400(20134F :
3,075,731,740) ordinary shares 3,075,731,740) R B E E HK$155,512,770 HK$153,786,587
of HK$0.05 each 0.0578 7T #) I 378 % 155,512,770/ 1T 153,786,587/ 7T
Equivalent to ELEN RMB135,686,000 RMB134,316,000

AK#135,686,000T A K#134,316,0007T

The following changes in the Company’s issued share capital FARRASEITRAEHWNT -
took place during the year:

Number of
ordinary shares
of HK$0.05 each
BREE Nominal value of
0.058 T ordinary shares
EERYA EEREE
HK$'000 RMB'000
THT ARETT
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :
As at 1 January 2013 20131418 3,033,602,350 151,680 132,660
Upon exercise of the share options (note) F1T{# B HE (P 3T) 42,129,390 2,106 1,656
As at 31 December 2013 R2013F12A318 &
and 1 January 2014 20141410 3,075,731,740 153,786 134,316
Upon exercise of the share options (note) F1T{#EER%HE (ffi:T) 34,523,660 1,726 1,370
As at 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 3,110,255,400 155,512 135,686
Note: BisE -
Pursuant to the exercise of the share options at the exercise price of HK$1.82 BBIRITEETRAM1.82BTITEAAR AKX ENE
each granted by the Company, the Company issued a total of 34,523,660 &g - AR BIRFREITE $£34,523,660A% (20134 -
ordinary shares (2013: 42,129,390 ordinary shares) of HK$0.05 each for a total 42,129,3900% ) AR EEO0.058 T L @R - AR &R
cash consideration, before expenses, of approximately HK$62,833,000 (2013: B (KR53 ) 462,833,000/ 7T (20134 : 76,675,000
HK$76,675,000) (approximately RMB49,874,000 (2013: RMB60,284,000) BIT) (SR AR 49,874,000 (20134 : AR
equivalent) during the year. The shares issued during the year rank pari passu in 60,284,0007T)) * SR FRNBITRHOES FEERR
all respects with the then existing shares of the Company. AIERETERNHEZERERES -

Annual Report 2014 45§ 1 29



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
TSR R BT 5 ()

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H

28. RESERVES 28. f#f&
(A) GROUP
The amounts of the Group's reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity.

A5EH
AEEATERBET R B R
RESBERGA HARDRAZT) -

(A)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-
foreign joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits
of the Group’s subsidiaries which are established in the
PRC has been transferred to reserve funds which are

RIFEARTING EREMERER
FOES > ARBEETBERIZAHER
AHE D E N DB EER R IR
fEmEE -

130

restricted as to use.

(B) COMPANY (B) A& F
Available-
for-sale
Share investment Exchange
Share option valuation fluctuation Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
AfHHE
EOEE  ERERE REMERE EXRDRE REEH &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETn  ARMTr  ARETz  AR%Tn  ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R2013F1 A1 1,748,241 68,087 - (156,976) 376,792 2,036,144
Total comprehensive EnzENE
income for the year 8% - - - (66,683) 338,449 271,766
Issue of shares R 95,390 (36,845 - - - 58,545
Equity-settled share option IIRELED
arrangements R - 5,757 - - - 5,757
Dividends recognised as distributions B ARBA AR
to owners HRE - - - - (291,809) (291,809)
At 31 December 2013 and 2013123318 R
1 January 2014 201451718 1,843,631 36,999 = (223,659) 423,432 2,080,403
Total comprehensive income EnEENE
for the year ag = - 222 7,845 287,773 295,840
Issue of shares ki 79,256 (30,79) - - - 48,460
Dividends recognised s distributions B2 ARBEA AR
to owners fRE - - - - (295,460) (295,460)
Transfer upon the expiry of BRAREER
the Pre-IPO Share BRETEER%
Option Scheme EIN - (6,203) - - 6,203 -
At 31 December 2014 12014128318 1,922,887 - 222 (215,814) 421,948 2,129,243
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 29. R HESE

On 14 May 2010 (the “Adoption Date"”), the Company adopted
a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme") and
a pre-initial public offering share option scheme expired on
28 June 2014 (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme (“Eligible
Persons”) include (a) any executive director of, manager of, or
other employee holding an executive, managerial, supervisory
or similar position in any member of the Group (”Executive”),
any full-time or part-time employee, or a person for the time
being seconded to work full-time or part-time for any member
of the Group; (b) a director or proposed director (including
an independent non-executive director) of any member of
the Group; (c) a direct or indirect shareholder of any member
of the Group; (d) a supplier of goods or services to any
member of the Group; (e) a customer, consultant, business
or joint venture partner, franchisee, contractor, agent or
representative of any member of the Group; (f) a person or
entity that provides design, research, development or other
support or any advisory, consultancy, professional or other
services to any member of the Group; and (g) an associate of
any of the persons referred to in paragraphs (a) to (c) above.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date. An
offer of the grant of a share option shall remain open for
acceptance by the Eligible Person concerned for a period of
28 days from the date of the Board approving the grant of
the share options (the “Offer Date”) provided that no such
grant of an option may be accepted after the expiry of the
effective period of the Share Option Scheme. An option
shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate
offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option
duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof is received by the Company on or before
the date upon which an offer of an option must be accepted
by the relevant Eligible Person, being a date not later than
28 days after the Offer Date. Such remittance shall in no
circumstances be refundable.

No share options have been granted under the Share Option
Scheme since its adoption.

72010F5 148 ([RMBEH]) - BHE
MEERHAEBORINEEENERNAE
SE A AQFIRM—IBEIERT B (B
BERTE ) R—IEE R ARBEERERETZ
(TarAMEEREREE )  ZitE
R201456 A28H @i °

BRETE

BREASNGERZEA(TGERA
+ 1) B (a) A& B ERIBK 8 2 7 H) E ]
TEF K18 JEETH - B - BEEBX
BUOBCMEMERS ([TTHRAR]D - E[
EREGRBESR - NERHRENKE TR
BRRIEBTFESIFRBITIENESR : (A%
BEAKERAANEERIREES(RES
MIERITESR)  C)AKEEMAKERFN
BEESEEEER  (ARBERAKE QAN
B o RIGHIER © (e) AEBEMKE QA
MEP - BE - EBERAZEBHE  FITgE
B EER - RERARE - (HRASEIETE
B A RHRMERET - T - FERHEME
KR - BE - ERIEMRBEOAL
KEE Mg Lifl(a) E ()BT TR AL
HBEEEA -

BREENAZHERMNERES Y
106 - RERENBRETHESSHE
EHhEREzZB(HR2 B8 ) ®RFT280 8
BAREBSERALTER  BEBEES
B RHEERR - AN AR B
# - BEARRINAMEER AL UAZNE
2EERZEER(MREZRHERTZN28H)
HZATRE AR A LA ZEBRERRES
BRENRZNHERERNARTNE
RIVBTIERRHRER - BIBRERKRR
REROMESERALEMAREER - £
MEFRETABER T TERE -

AL E BRI B\ - IR IR
511 AR -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 29. B REFE (@)

PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME BRDFABENBRESS

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to BERAREERNERETEEELATRERER

give the employees an opportunity to have a personal stake AR ERAERNKE  BBEEAE%

in the Company and help motivate them to optimise their AAREBERIEZERBT REE - & EE)

future performance and efficiency to the Group and/or to WEMNBENBE - AR N E ZEEH K

reward them for their past contributions, to attract and retain EEES  HEIXXNNEBEFTER HEES

or otherwise maintain on-going relationships with such EAEFAANER LGS - BRIKITNES -
employees who are significant to and/or whose contributions SHEZEREMIFRERR -  BRAAHEE

are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success BUEE AR AE ST 210 F B G  ER B AR i s & M 5

of the Group. The principal terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option OAREAER - T BB BRI ¢

Scheme are substantially the same as the terms of the Share

Option Scheme except that:

(i)  the subscription price per share under the Pre-IPO Share () BAAHABEEIERETZIETNE
Option Scheme shall be at a 30% discount to the offer IR E B E(E2.6/8 LITHEI0%
price of HK$2.6; and )53

(i) all options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option (i) BRAFBENERETSETRD
Scheme will only be vested in the following manner: HFTABRERIZUAT RS

Maximum percentage of A{TEEREN

Vesting period options exercisable SEHR SR

From the 1st anniversary of the listing date  25% of the total number of BETMASE—ERFARE BREY kR
until the day immediately before the 2nd ~ the shares under options EERLITASE BEHI25%
anniversary of the listing date BERA AL

From the 2nd anniversary of the listing date  35% of the total number of ELMABE-_AEFAR BRESRRR
until the day immediately before the 3rd the shares under options ZEELITMABE=[ BHM35%
anniversary of the listing date BEAFZAL

From the 3rd anniversary of the listing date  40% of the total number of BrTMBEHRE=(EREFAR BERRES D
until the day immediately before the 4th the shares under options ZEEIMASNENE BHIA0%
anniversary of the listing date BERRLCAL

All the options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme were BRARBEERBRETEETHMEER

granted on 21 May 2010 at a consideration of HK$1 paid by HEBEMR2010F5 421 BT @ SERAINA

each grantee. The total number of shares of the Company HRERIAET - AAFRETEREE XA
which may be issued upon the exercise of all options granted FEEERBRETZR DM ABRER

under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 115,378,000. A B BT AR A Bl AR (D 4% 4115,378,000

% o
Pre-IPO Share Options do not confer rights on the holders to BERAREERBRETITER THEEA
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. BERREBHABREAZ EIRZRHEFR -
1 32 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited 1 BB %8 & @R AR A 7
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued) 29. B REFE (@)
PRE-IPO SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRABEEBRESE(E)
The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Options granted on 21 May MR2010F5 421 BRHME X AREER
2010 was estimated at approximately HK$128,071,000, using B ER A £ BEMGET4)/4A128,071,000%
a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions TT 0 I T E E AT B AR M R TR R R
upon which the options were granted. The following table lists % FR-EEASE - TREHIERFTEF
the inputs to the model used: ArALE
Batch /N 1 2 3
Dividend yield (%) REZE(%) 3.169 3.169 3.169
Expected volatility (%) TERRRIR (%) 56.58 56.58 56.58
Risk-free rate (%) ERREE(%) 0.794 0.956 1.126
Expected option period (Years) BENRER(GETFER(F) 2.59 3.09 3.59
The following share options were outstanding under the Pre- FR - BRAREERNBRETEIETHAE
IPO Share Option Scheme during the year: TR BERREE S T
Number of
Exercise price options
BRITEE BREZA
HK$ per share ‘000
BIT F1n
At 1 January 2014 R2014%F1A1H 1.82 35,390
Exercised during the year FAITEE 1.82 (34,524)
Forfeited during the year F R U 1.82 (866)
At 31 December 2014 7K2014%F12H31H 1.82 -
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for FITER R BRI T B BRRY AN4E Ak
share options exercised during the year was HK$4.34 per BEAERRM4.34%T(2013F « BRBD
share (2013: HK$5.10 per share). 5.10/%70) °
No share option expense was recognised by the Group for REBWEBEARRRTHERAREEA
the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB5,757,000) BRENEZE2014F12A31 B IEFE R
in relation to the Pre-IPO Share Options granted by the RERERSZ (2013F : AR¥S5,757,000
Company. JT) ©
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 30. (K&
During the year, the Group entered into the sale and purchase FR AEBEIIVEEHEAREBESE LD
agreements to acquire 100% equity interest in Heshan EREBERAB([BLUER]) MLTEH
Starcorp Plastic Co., Ltd.” (“Heshan Starcorp”) and Anhui ERHMEAERSEELT ([FHER] S
Xin Hua Lian New Material Co., Ltd" (“Xin Hua Lian"), at a 100% A #zm BeREINABARKE
cash consideration of RMB31,860,000 and RMB30,000,000, 31,860,0007T & A R#30,000,0007T °

respectively.

Heshan Starcorp is principally engaged in the manufacture BLERTENSVRERHENHEEE
and sale of plastic products. Xin Hua Lian is principally o MEMIENEENENIERKIESE
engaged in the manufacture and sale of inorganic nonmetallic ME e ZWEBEAREBERTHBBE RN
materials. The acquisitions allow the Group to expand its I REMIESBME ZELE -

production capacity on plastic resins processing and inorganic
nonmetallic materials.

The respective fair values of the identifiable assets and RAEEERGES#E 2B - FREE LA R
liabilities of the above companies acquired at the dates of SEMAHRANEENBBEALBRANT ¢

control assumed by the Group are as follows:

Heshan Xin Hua
Starcorp Lian Total
BLER FEE B B
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR AR¥T AR¥T T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENLEE 37,100 37,461 74,561
Prepaid land lease payments AR T HHEER 17,778 13,878 31,656
Deposits paid for the purchase BELH - WE -
of land, property, plant and R E NPT HY
equipment b - 377 377
Inventories FE 9,896 2,248 12,144
Trade receivables B S EW T IA 3,120 - 3,120
Prepayments and TERT SR R E A
other receivables A eSS 6,803 43 6,846
Cash and cash equivalents HENESEED 3,227 17 3,244
Trade payables B ST 5RIA (314) (3,201) (3,5615)
Other payables and accruals HAb B IB R EET & A (45,526) (20,823) (66,349)
Tax payable e IR (224) - (224)
Total identifiable net assets Al RIE EF AR
at fair value (ZBAR{EE) 31,860 30,000 61,860
Total consideration RERE 31,860 30,000 61,860
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30. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

31.

Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the acquisitions
of Heshan Starcorp and Xin Hua Lian of RMB85,000 and
RMB105,000 respectively have been excluded from the cost of
acquisitions and have been recognised directly as an expense
in the period and included in the “other expenses” in profit or
loss.

The aggregate fair value of the trade receivables as at the date
of control assumed by the Group amounted to RMB3,120,000,
which approximate to the gross contractual amount of the
corresponding balance acquired by the Group. At the date of
control assumed by the Group, the management considered
that the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is
insignificant.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of
subsidiaries is as follows:

30. ¥¥&56tum)

RMBBRLEERTERM D IELENK
BHHEK A A ARES50005T M AR
105,000 C E# SRR BB A~ 240 - BE
REREERER ARSI RIBEMN [Hi
MY A -

RASERGESEZB - B 5REGIAER

o MAKERGEHEZE  EEERR
BHEZRONEHNRSREL TEKX

BEREBEMNBATNREREDTNT

RMB’000

AR¥T T

Cash consideration paid BERNRENRE 61,860

Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B BBER S MRS EEY (3,244)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included &R BIENIRE S NIBELEE

in investing activities Y i FER 58,616

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2013: Nil).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company issued
financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to subsidiaries. The aggregate amounts that
could be required to be paid if the guarantees were called
upon in entirety amounted to RMB766,318,000 (2013:
RMB525,215,000), of which RMB636,880,000 (2013:
RMB262,827,000) has been utilised by those subsidiaries.
At the end of the reporting period, no amount (2013: Nil) has
been recognised in the Company’s statement of financial
position as liabilities in respect of such guarantees.

1. IREE

RBEBR  AEEBETFRERANAGRE
(20134 : 4&) -

RB|EHER  ARARBETFHBEB R
RITHMERRITELMHER - HEXK
PHREERBATINNESTAA
R % 766,318,000 7t (2013 F : AR %
525,215,0007T) + H AR #636,880,000
7T (20134 : AR#262,827,00070) B %
WBARBA - RIMEER - ARARMP K
AR TR I B R R R R M iR M B (& (2013
F )
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32. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 32 REFEZRH
(A) AS LESSOR (A) fERHEA
The Group leases certain office premises under AREBRELLHELTHEHEE T
operating lease arrangements, with leases negotiated NE  HEEBEA—ETFTE -

for terms ranging from one to ten years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RBEHR - BIBEEPEIZHTA]
future minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable BUH&E Y AEEDEERA R
operating leases with its tenants falling due as follows: KEEMBAS@BEOT
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARETT
Within one year —&FR 630 967
In the second to fifth years, F_EERFNA
inclusive (BEEEWSF) 470 1,051
After five years RFE 6 62
1,106 2,080
(B) AS LESSEE (B) fERAMBA
The Group leases certain of its office premises, AEEBRBELERELH  HAET
production plants, warehouses and equipment under WAE £EME - BERSEE -
operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for HEEAE—ZE2THFTE -

terms ranging from one to ten years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total RIEER  BREATHBELEHE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable B AEBENHEMHRRKERS
operating leases falling due as follows: BEEWT -
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREET T
Within one year —F R 10,297 17,777
In the second to fifth years, EF_FZERFNRN
inclusive (BREREMF) 17,958 44,547
After five years AFi& 7,772 8,250
36,027 70,574
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31 December 2014
201412 A31H

33. COMMITMENTS 33. A

RBER - AEBB AT EREAE :

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end
of the reporting period:

2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AR®ET T
Contracted, but not provided for: EEESEIGERE-E
Land, property, plant and equipment THb - WE - BB MR 347,681 454,881

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 34. @BATIXRF R

BALANCES
(A) THE GROUP’'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH (A) XEERAXREFHEHBEBALIZEAR
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR 2
2014 2013
201445 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BisE AR¥ET T ARETTT
Transactions with companies under RZBHFET A7
the common control of EEEHOAT]
a director: MR 5 :
Sales of goods HE S (i) 221 6,408
Consumption of utilities VNS (ii) 7,241 6,744
Rental expenses HeM% (iii) 3,316 3,316
Purchases of materials HEERM R (iv) 8,059 8,340
Purchases of equipment RS (v) 74,952 75,218
Purchases of electronic accessories LS F R4 (v) 2,810 4,085
Licensing trademarks ByrE (vi) 406 500
Licensing patents BTER (vi) - 17
Acquisition cost for Lesso Valve Bt ¥R R P 2 W BB R AN (vii) - 116,000
Agency services from RE—EBEHH
companies under the control ZE A EFTIR R
of a director RIZARTE (viii) 1,446 3,600
Advisory services from a company REZAEBAFESN
under the significant influence B — R A T
of directors Y 78 AR 75 (viii) 943 4,845
Purchases of land, property and mM—EFHEE
plant from a director T MERKBE (ix) 15,630 -
Deposits paid for the purchase MEFEE TH -
of land, property and plant to LES AT
directors FI T HE S (ix) 77,010 -
Rental expenses paid to directors EEE SN A (x) 1,950 3,727
Design and maintenance services A EPERENRI R
from a joint venture HENE RS (xi) 2,563 2,330
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A)

138

THE GROUP’S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS WITH
RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Sales of goods to related companies were made with reference to
the prices and conditions offered by the Group to the third-party
customers.

Utilities were provided by related companies at cost.
Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of materials from related companies were made based
on mutually agreed terms.

Purchases of equipment and electronic accessories from related
companies were made with reference to the prices and conditions
offered by the related companies to their third-party customers.

Licensing trademarks and patents to related companies were
conducted based on mutually agreed terms.

The consideration was agreed after arm’s length negotiations
with reference to the fair value of net assets of Lesso Valve at
approximately RMB116,500,000 as at 31 December 2012, as
assessed by Savills Valuation and Professional Services Limited,
an independent professionally qualified valuer. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement on connected transaction
in relation to the acquisition of entire equity interest in Lesso
Valve dated 15 January 2013.

Agency services and advisory services were provided by related
companies based on mutually agreed terms.

Land, property and plant were sold to the Group based on
mutually agreed terms. For details, please refer to the Company's
announcement on connected transactions dated 20 June 2014.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops and
warehouses were leased to the Group based on mutually agreed
terms.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually
agreed terms.

The related party transactions in respect of the above
items also constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited 1 BB %8 & @R AR A 7

34. BBEA LIRS REER(E)

(A)

FEERAFEMEBBAL ZEAR
& (%)

MEE

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

A ARHEERIAREHEE=T
EF R MERRIGEHSRET -

RARETIRARA i BRRE R R R -
AEMXIYZET HENBREE -

LT 42 & 77 16 B B 16 R 1) R B X B) R
REREFREMTIESERB RAIMESE
=R EPFHEER R E BB AR
BE -

E TR AT EERENTIRE T HE
EGRFETT -

REDNZBHBUEESERGEEME
—AFREEEREEBEARA R
B PBRAPIA20126 12 A3TA ZFEER
R EEEDZFHOARE 116,500,000
T EATFHEFERE - FHBERLEARA
AJR2013F1 A1 H AR B2
BRBEOBERSGZAE °

AR X ) T4 8 77 15 E MO IR ER (LRI AR
R AR o

Tt ERBRE TR E R 7 E B R
EFAEE - GBS - B2HARER
201456 A20 8 EEER H T 2 N E -

MECHERAE  RE  FHREE T
e HEREFE T AEKE -

BEDETIRET O RFIR AR o
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(B)

(C)

(D)

34. BN TR RERR(E)

BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (B) EZRAEE AN+ z&hek
The balances with related parties represent deposits HEBM AT 7 E&BIERNESYMNY
of RMB77,010,000 paid to directors (2013: Nil) and 4 AR#77,010,0007T (20134 -
deposits of RMB23,780,000 (2013: RMB5,920,000) paid EIRAR—EERZ —ANESZEHN
to a company under the common control of a director, NAIZWE e AR 23,780,0007T
which are included in the Group’s deposits paid for the (20134 : AR#5,920,0007T) © H
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment. FFIARSEREE T WX - HE
REBEMZHHEEA -
COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EHEEIBALTHRZEE
Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into AREBETHEB AR AHEEYEEL
lease agreements with a director and a company under CHBpE—UEBEEN—HERS
the common control of a director to lease properties EEEFNARGTLEERZE - A
for operations. The operating lease commitments of R®14,115,0007L (20134 : AR
RMB14,115,000 (2013: RMB19,478,000) with lease 19,478,00070 ) KL & TH & A HR
terms of three years have been included in note 32(B) to B=F  BERUBRENE32B)
the financial statements. oo
COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY (D) XEEFXEEEAEHTMH
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
2014 2013
201445 20134
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Short-term employee benefits R EB R 9,896 7,005
Post-employment benefits RIR1E R T 267 266
Equity-settled share option expense LA B e 45 5 O B AR RE B <2 - 1,173
10,163 8,444

Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in
note 8(A) to the financial statements.

EFEFMOFBHN M B RRME
8(A) °
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. @@TH
(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) 2RI EHER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RMEHAR SESRHIANEKEEE
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting o
period are as follows:
2014 2013
20144 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Group AEHE =2 AR®T T ARBT T
Financial assets SRMEE
Investments rE
Held-to-maturity investments BEZRIEHKRE 16 60,757 249,001
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE 17 39,466 -
100,223 249,001
Loans and receivables BHXRENKE
Trade and bills receivables 2 SR EIE R T 19 1,303,576 1,037,629
Other receivables E At fE WK1 20 34,790 50,825
Cash and bank deposits e RIBITFR 21 3,198,902 2,189,242
4,537,268 3,277,696
4,637,491 3,526,697
Financial liabilities SRBEE
Financial liabilities 5K AR S AR
at amortised cost THEE
Trade and bills payables B RN FIEREE 22 973,387 861,416
Financial liabilities included in T AE M FE T FRIE K&
other payables and accruals FrtEANTREE 23 518,377 430,141
Bank loans and other borrowings IRITER R E MR 24 3,179,834 2,687,116
4,671,598 3,978,673
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. €T A @)

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) 2T EHEA(E)
(Continued)

2014 2013
20145 20134
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Company KA T BisE AR¥ET T ARETTT
Financial assets SREE
Investment RE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE 17 39,466 -
Loans and receivables B RENKE
Loans to a subsidiary m— R EARER 14 1,358,537 1,357,741
Prepayment, deposits and B e R
other receivables E tb pE U 3R I8 - 5,772
Cash and bank deposits Re RIRITFR 21 116,839 337,413
1,475,376 1,700,926
1,514,842 1,700,926
Financial liability cHAas
Financial liability at 5K AR S AR
amortised cost THEE
Bank loans and other borrowings RITER R EMER 24 2,492,930 2,041,988
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. €@t T B (®)
(B) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL (B) €RIENAAEBEITE
INSTRUMENTS
Except as disclosed in the following tables, the carrying BrTIRATEEEI  AEBEEARF
amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s financial R BEREANER 2SR T AZER
instruments recognised in the financial statements BEEALEBERES :

approximate their fair values:

2014 2013
20145 20134
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
IRMEE AREE BREE AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Group REH ARST AR¥ETx ARETET AR%ETRT
Financial asset TRMEE
Held-to-maturity B =5 5
investments & 60,757 58,927 249,001 260,137
Financial liability EA = N=R
Bank loans and RITEF R
other borrowings HifEm
— The Senior Notes -BAERE = = 1,645,824 1,678,698
2014 2013
20145 20134
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
IREE AREE AREE ARfEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Company RAF ARETR AR¥TR ARETET AR%ETT
Financial liability SRBE
Bank loans and other RITER K
borrowings HfEm
— The Senior Notes —BREER - - 1,645,824 1,678,698
The fair values are based on the quoted market price NAEBEIIBIESRELATEHIESE
provided by a leading global financial market data B ERIRHEN TS RERET -
provider.
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35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 35. R TE @)
(B) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL (B)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time
and are based on relevant market information about the
financial instruments. The fair values of financial assets
and liabilities are included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or

ERIANDAEETE(E)

oy

ARBEMFIDREREERBERES
BeRTANHERHSERMMEL -2
BEENMABHNARBENAZIAR
FEZX 575 (M EsR A BB HE)ER
RBHTZARZEEARKR - TAIE
KBRIIBIMEFT AR EIE -

liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions
were used to estimate the fair values:

The fair values of held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale investments and the Senior Notes
are derived from quoted prices in active market for
identical assets or liabilities, i.e., level 1 fair value
hierarchy in accordance with HKFRS 7.

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, other
receivables, cash and bank deposits, trade and bills
payables and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of bank loans and other borrowings
(excluding the Senior Notes) have been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments on
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise bank
loans and other borrowings and cash and short-term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise
finance for the Group's operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other
receivables and trade and other payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

RAEZIMKRE  AIHLERE
REERBHAABETIREERE
BT HREERRENRE
B AEBY B MEEAF TR
MARBEREFE -

BoREFAELRR - HMER
FE BERRITER  BHE
MRERER - sTAEMENR
EREFERNERBENAA
EBEEEREERS  T2AN
ZETAMIIMAE

o

BITERREMER(TRIEE
RER) AR METEBRE
B BARE (65 EEER
BFIS IR T FrREY
T EIR IR & R TR B Mt
HEH, -

36. cREREEBEERBE

AEENTECHTABERITERLEM

&R

IARIRE R FEHTFR -

ZETRTEMN

IZARNI/AKENEEEREST - A%
BB HEMHESEREENTREREE

RafE -

{52058 55 e K R TR e EL A FE M R

ME 5 & 5RIA K E A B 5RIR o
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. ¢RiEREEBEENEE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments $’$ liyﬂl,&}giﬁﬁiﬁﬂ Fjﬂ?ﬂ
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and AN RS - EERER M RENE ©ER
liquidity risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is kept to EEE’\ZIKEIFRJ%H*E'JEQZFJ—L ?’ETTEAEfEUk
a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and other ¥ ARERVWEFEREMOATAEREMT
instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not hold BDAESE R 2 A o NERI EIFA S EEITET
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. FemTEMEEE A -EEgD R
The Broad reviews and agrees policies for managing each of REZERMREEMBE  ZBmmT -
these risks and they are summarised below.
INTEREST RATE RISK = @ B
In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group FEANRTAEBERAEREERSRET
is subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed KRR - MEERNRTEGERANEBEER
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value NABEMERE -
interest rate risk.
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a Ti‘«%g‘,\T\TEJ*“EAqt&iHHEEr‘ﬁﬂazgrﬂ’j@@jﬂ
reasonably possible change in interest rate, with all other RIEFREFENREE - BFA EMEER
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax by BAAE  REBRADNGFEEE A AT
assuming the floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end RS 7 GURE -
of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
Increase/
Increase/ (decrease)
(decrease) in profit
in basis points before tax
HER BREL AR R
i, Omd) #®m S Grid)
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE2014F 12831 HIEFE 50 (15,649)
Year ended 31 December 2014 BZE2014F12R31HIEFE (50) 15,649
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A3181LFE 50 (5,706)
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZE2013F12A318ILFE (50) 5,706
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. €A EE HEZEREE @)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s main businesses are located in mainland China
and most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi.
Most of the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
Renminbi, except for certain cash and bank deposits and bank
loans and other borrowings denominated in US dollar and HK
dollar. The Group has not hedged its foreign exchange rate
risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end
of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in
the Renminbi against the relevant currencies, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due
to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and loans).

S0 B

REEM T EEB N BEAM - KA
NRGEYANREETT - REBAHNOEE
MEBBUAREBE  EETRENRITHF
RAIRTTE RS E A B AR T RGBT
1B - NEEAESEIERE AT -

TENBERT  AEERBADZNEHARE
AEMAREREXNSIEREEE (HRN
EXUEEEMERNAAEBEESMB)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
HK$/US$ rate in profit
BT ETER before tax
EHCFER) BrE AR R
% gmCR)
RMB’000
AR¥T T
2014 20145
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBE L EITRE 5 (52,736)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ W AREEFEITAE (5) 52,736
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ WARE S BITEE 5 (6,058)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ MARE B THE (5) 6,058
2013 20134
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARKELETTRE 5 (70,980)
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ WA R HEITHAE (5) 70,980
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ WAREE B ITEE 5 (23,156)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ i AR ¥ KB TTHE (5) 23,156
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36.

146

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. ¢RiEMEEEENRKE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK FERE
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy AEBERENANEEASEMNE=TET
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers who X5 RBAEBNEE  TBRIREEH
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification EITRGHNEE  NWELBBEEEXRER
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on FFo boh » REBFBEERERESRNIER
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not EAREBRZERRBRIT TEKX
significant.
The credit risk of the Group's other financial assets, which NEEMEMSREE(BIER S LIETTE
comprise cash and bank deposits and other receivables, arises REEMERZE)NEERRREE R 5%
from potential default of the counterparty, with a maximum FTHEBEEY  EAERREESENRZEIA
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments. FBREE -
Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy ERAEEEEEARREEAENE=ZR
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. EIRS  WAFEER® -
LIQUIDITY RISK REELEKE
The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash REBMHEEZTHNIRE LIRSS EY -
equivalents and available funding through various sources of WiER T RREREAEESES o
finances to meet its commitments.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the B ETRORITENRABEE - AEBRE R
end of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual LHRMemaED BRI T
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2014
20145
Within 1to 2 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
15/ 1226/ 265k #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Group AEH ARBTT AR¥®TnR ARBTrx AR%Tx
Trade and bills payables B HEMNTIERER 973,387 = = 973,387
Financial liabilities included &t A H b T 5008
in other payables and RIEFTE R/
accruals TRIAE 518,377 - - 518,377
Bank loans and other borrowings #8717 B ZU R EAb {5 3K 1,208,759 101,952 2,020,864 3,331,575
2,700,523 101,952 2,020,864 4,823,339
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. ¢RiEfEEBEEREE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) REE SR (F)
2013
20134
Within 1102 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
1ER 1226 R 26 E st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Group REE ARET T ARET T ARET T ARETTT
Trade and bills payables B o ENGIERERE 861,416 - - 861,416
Financial liabilities included T AE AR OB
in other payables and RETERN
accruals SRBEE 430,141 - - 430,141
Bank loans and other borrowings 4277 & 5 &% E A fE 5% 886,318 187,050 1,646,035 2,719,403
2,177,875 187,050 1,646,035 4,010,960
2014
2014
Within 1to 2 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
15K/ 122F R 2F N E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Company AAF ARBT R ARET R AR¥T R ARBTT
Bank loans and other borrowings  $R1TE F M E M E TR 690,504 42,546 1,902,620 2,635,670
Financial guarantee contracts ~ BII5#ERA 4 463,287 56,107 117,486 636,880
1,153,791 98,653 2,020,106 3,272,550
2013
20134
Within 1to02 More than
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 18226 R 29 Ak st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Company Y N/NC] ARBF T ARBF T ARETT ARETTT
Bank loans and other borrowings ~ $R1TE R E M E R 624,068 124,715 1,646,035 2,394,818
Financial guarantee contracts  BIFERE 4 201,653 61,174 - 262,827
825,721 185,889 1,646,035 2,657,645
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36.

148

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued)

The amount included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Company could be required to
settle under the arrangements for the full guaranteed amounts
in connection with banking facilities granted to subsidiaries
if those amounts are claimed by the counterparties to the
guarantees. Based on expectation as at the end of the
reporting period, the Company considers that it is more
likely than not that no amount will be payable under such
arrangements.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern
and to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
In order to optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares or new debts or the
redemption of existing debts. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes bank
loans and other borrowings less cash and bank deposits.
Capital represents the total equity.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited 1 BB %8 & @R AR A 7
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 36. 2R EEEEZNEE (&)
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) BEREE(E)

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity ANEBREI AESER FREERLRE
ratio at a healthy level in order to support its businesses. The REENKFE UL HHEHER REBKIAE
principal strategies adopted by the Group include, without BRBEEEETERENAKESRESE K
limitation, reviewing future cash flow requirements and MR BAEEHEE S - R BETRE
the ability to meet debt repayment schedules when they EAEKFRABRKETEZ LB EE (M
fall due, maintaining a reasonable level of available banking ZH) IR AEEEBEAESEBEKIEHER
facilities and adjusting investment plans and financing plans, if THEHEER RNREEHARNER SFEE DS
necessary, to ensure that the Group has a reasonable level of EEMT

capital to support its business. The net debt to equity ratios as
at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2014 2013

201445 20134

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETFIT

Bank loans and other borrowings RITERRHMER 3,179,834 2,687,116
Less: Cash and bank deposits B IRE MIRITIER (3,198,902) (2,189,242)
Net (cash)/debt (B&) EEFE (19,068) 497,874
Total equity s R 8,549,723 7,255,943
Net debt to equity ratio B RSN X N/A 7%
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. FEMBARMNFE

TEWMBRTMFBNOT

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered A FEMGRER LA
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
s, EROTEER
=2 Bl d-E 3L R A Hi ME FEEK
Starcorp Investment Holdings Ltd.  BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
ERREERERAA REERARS E 100% - REER
Great China International BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
Holdings Ltd. HERARES (E 100% - REEKR
ERERERER AR
China Liansu Investment Limited ~ BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
hEB R E ARAT EBRERNE 1% 100% - REER
China Liansu Development Limited BVI US$1 100% - Investment holding
BB ERAR DA HERBRHE (E 100% - REEK
Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
sale of building materials
and interior decoration
products
B AR DA 0 13,000,000/ 7T - 100%  REFRL HERM R
FEEm
Guangdong Lesso Technology PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BRBMERREXERLFC h 2,800,000,00075 7T - 100% HERHEZHEBEREN
Heshan Lesso Industrial PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Development Co., Ltd. " ® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BLBZEXERBRARY R 269,930,000/ 7 - 100% REREEBHEEREN
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Wuhan) Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BRI ER(GUE) AR AR R 111,000,000 7T - 100% HERHEENEBREN
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

MRS FRR M T E )

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. S EME LA IWEE @)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity
Place of Issued attributable
incorporation/ ordinary/ to the Company
registration registered 77 ) E{L R 2 Lk A
Name and business share capital Direct Indirect Principal activities
MR, ERTLER
28 aEfff I i B AR A Hi B FEEK
Lesso Technology Development PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
(Guiyang) Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
BEMBER(EG)BRARY P 115,000,000/ 7T - 100% BUERHEEHNEBREN
Nanjing Lesso Technology PRC US$26,750,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Industrial Co., Ltd. " ® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
HRBMENMRERERAFY H 26,750,000% 7T - 100% BEERHEZHEBREMH
Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) PRC US$32,790,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Co., Ltd."® plastic pipes and pipe
fittings
KEmHEB L) BRAR® h 32,790,000% 7T - 100% HENRHEENEENREN
Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd. " PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of

plastic pipes and pipe
fittings

ABBEERERAFC i AE#200,000,0007 - 100% RERHEPHEEREM
(a) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of the (a) RIERBEZEMA—MINEBELE -
PRC.
(b) Registered as equity joint ventures under the laws of the PRC. (b)  REBEREEREMAEERZE -
(c) Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of the PRC. (c) RERBEZEEZEMA—BARAR -

EERR - ERARIINARBME QR
AERBNEEREAZENSABRAEEE
EFENEAID - EER DM E MK
BRANER  HEEAREBRITE

The above table lists the Company's subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group’s net assets.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of
the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

38. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 38. #LEMBHmR

FE2EMN2015F3 16 B E R EEZEN
TERR I -

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 16 March 2015.
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GLOSSARY

A5

"Board”
=30

“BVI”
[REBHARES]

“China” or "PRC"
[
“Code”
[<rAI]

“Company” or “China Lesso”

[ARRR] e [ A B2 |

"EBITDA"

“Group”
[A&EHE ]

“Guangdong Liansu Electric”

pil}

[EREPER]

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery”

[EREZBHER

“Guangdong Lesso Technology”

[ERE BRI

"HK$”
[Bl
“Hong Kong” or “HK"
[ &%

“Lesso Valve”

(B 2B RIFT ]

the board of directors of the Company

RRBEER

the British Virgin Islands
EEEBRES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this annual report,
excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

REARKME  BIAFHEMS X AEEESE  RFINEE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ERRAI SR AR B R EVA ST R

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
REEE EEIERAR AR

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

ORRAB -~ IR - & R E A &R

the Company and its subsidiaries

RRRREM B R E

Guangdong Liansu Electric Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly wholly-owned
by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the Company as defined
under the Listing Rules
EBREBZEERERAT  EHELEMEZERENQAR  WAKRRAANHAE
BEALT(EER EMARA)

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of
the Company as defined under the Listing Rules

BRI HEBEERRAR  EMELAHEZERANRGF  UAKRATR
WEEAL(EERR EMARA)

Guangdong Lesso Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.*, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company

ERBMEMBEEARADA - RARANEZZENE QA

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREOEEEE AT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
R EEE R RITTH R

Guangdong Lesso Valve Co.,Ltd.*
BRI ZBRFI AR A A
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

ARl ()

“Listing Rules”

[ EmARAl]

“Macau”

[8FT ]
“Model Code”
Ee SN

“N/A"
[N/A]

“New Fortune”
(=2 ]

“pE"

[PE ]

“PP-R"
[PP-R]

“Prospectus”
[HBRER]
“PVC”

[PVC]

“RMB”
AR ]

“Senior Notes”

[BERR]

"SFO"
[ &7 M B A

“Share(s)”
[t ]

“Shareholder(s)”
[A%3R ]

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”

[NEfER 2B B 2 |

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B PrRE S LR A

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H DR PR R T R

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
LTRRIMI SR 10FTE N LM AR ZEFEITES X HAIFESFE

not applicable
T iEA

New Fortune Star Limited
New Fortune Star Limited

polyethylene
B

polypropylene random
BRARRRG

the Company's prospectus dated 9 June 2010
AR AEIA2010F6 HOH M AR ERE

polyvinyl chloride
B

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FREZEEERE - ARE

US$300 million 7.875% senior notes due 2016 issued by the Company
RRBEITR2016F 2 HIM3ERTT7.875% B A RIE

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
BAEEDEST1 EEF LB ED

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company

KRABEARFRFIREEO.05E TN

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
ZN/NEl S LESZE DN

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*

Bhium B R 2 EX AR AR
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GLOSSARY (Continued)

EEll=1))

“Shunde Properties”

Mg % ]

“State Council”

[ B 75Br |

“Stock Exchange”

a building erected on and the land use right pertaining to a parcel of
land situated at No. 35-M1, South of Longzhou West Road, Jibei Village
Committee, Longjiang Town, Shunde District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC; a parcel of land situated at Dongshengfang, Xixi
District, Longjiang Town, Shunde District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC; a building erected on and the land use right pertaining
to a parcel of land situated at No. 77, Longzhou West Road, Xixi Village
Committee, Longjiang Town, Shunde District, Foshan City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC; a building erected on and the land use right pertaining
to a parcel of land situated at 3 of No. 77, Xixi section, Longzhou Road,
Xixi Village Committee, Longjiang Town, Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC; and a building erected on and the land use
right pertaining to a parcel of land situated at 4 of No. 77, Xixi section,
Longzhou Road, Xixi Resident Committee, Longjiang Town, Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
URFPEEREHILTIERRETRESIENZSEMARIABEIS-M1—EL
Hh FE)— BT R ME T AR NP EERE G TIEERET
HIERRBEDH BT URFEEREH LITIBRREETHEAENE
SRMAR77R Bt N —BEFRZ MO L ERE  CRTEE
REBILUTEEEE THAEEZGREMERERT7TRZ =— Bt FA9—
AR T Rz ey iR AR RO B ER A 6L T EE R ST PR
HeEREZEEGEMNBAERT7R O —IELH FH—EEFRZ T+
s FA4E

The State Council of the PRC
B B 75 e

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

[ 58 22 BT BERBERSMAER AT

“Taiwan” the Republic of China

B HERE

“tonne(s)” a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms
[T | EEEEMEL - BEFHM,0008 T

"us” the United States of America

[EH ] EFER 5 REY

“US$” US dollar, the lawful currency of US

= ERZEEES T

“%" per cent.

[% ] Btk

* The English or Chinese translations in this annual report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

* AN R0 23T kP SRS RE (AN R R 2 R
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

Ms. Lan Fang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Mr. Lin Dewei

Mr. Cheung Man Yu

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Luen Hei

Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun

Dr. Bai Chongen

Mr. Fung Pui Cheung

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan

Ms. Lan Fang

Exg

BITES
mMESSE(L/E)
foomtm S (TTE AR EL)
ERMR L
FEEIR L L
FLIKER S £
BREIR o %
NI T
mERLE

BRERLE

HHTES
MR L

BYFHTES
REREL
Voesp vt
TEExLE
RXFIEE
WLt

BREEY
BB (L)
FEFEE
RIS
RXTFHAE

B R
R (EE)
ERER L
it E
HERMEE
FHEZFEE

REZEES
BB A (Z/E)
TimfmotE
AERE L
IBIEERE
ITExLEE

[ Papeen
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

NEIEF )
COMPANY SECRETARY YNETE %=
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel SR A
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EERE
Mr. Zuo Manlun o im S A&
Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel SE LA
REGISTERED OFFICE APPSR
PO Box 309, Ugland House PO Box 309, Ugland House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands Cayman Islands
HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL FEAISN T EE £,
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA
Liansu Industrial Estate AR
Longjiang Town ER & (H4 - 528318)
Shunde District Rl
Foshan City B &=
Guangdong Province 528318 BeTiE
China B§E 98 T 324
PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS ERTEE XM
IN HONG KONG
Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2 BENE
South Seas Centre Seb IR B D
75 Mody Road B T755%
Tsim Sha Tsui East ByEd L)
Kowloon, Hong Kong F_FE121E3F
LISTING INFORMATION EmER
Listing: R
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited EBBMAERSFIBRAT
Stock code: B2 5%
2128 2128
SHARE INFORMATION %5 & #
Board lot size: BFEEEBEA
1,000 shares 1,0008%
Share issued as at 31 December 2014: R2014F12 831 HE BTG EE -
3,110,255,400 shares 3,110,255,4000%
Market capitalisation as at 31 December 2014: M2014512H31BHE :
HK$11,819 million 118.191B48 7T
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

NalEE )

DIVIDEND

Final dividend per share for the year ended 31 December 2014
HK13 cents per ordinary share

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
16 March 2015

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

- for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual
general meeting from 12 to 15 May 2015 (both dates
inclusive)

- for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend
from 21 to 26 May 2015 (both dates inclusive)

2015 annual general meeting:
15 May 2015

Payment of 2014 proposed final dividend*:
on or around 1 June 2015

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093

Queensgate House

Grand Cayman, KY1-1102

Cayman lIslands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

i Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2015 annual general meeting to
be held on 15 May 2015.

BRE
HZE2014F12A3MHIEFEFRARBPE :
BRI 3L

5 B
FEEERE -
2015435168

EERERMOBEETFE
- BELERREBFASGTRE FRENE
HE2015F5 8122158 (BHEEEMX)

- T WL R R B B R E B 20154
5A21ZE26 R (BIEEEMAX)

2016 F R BEF KRG -
201558158

IR 2014F # R AR HIRR B+
2016546 A1 B HT B T

RGBFEELRER
MaplesFS Limited

PO Box 1093
Queensgate House
Grand Cayman, KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

B BFEERILESE
EEPREBLEEZRLBRAA
BE

T 2 fF RER1835%

A 1R D
17181712-1716%

MEZAFRREMN 201545 A 16 HR1TR92015F R A F
RE EbE% - HEEE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

NalE R

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

Units 2008-12, 20th Floor, The Centre
99 Queen’s Road, Central, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
K&L Gates

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

http://www.lesso.com
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&5 1 (852) 2136 6185
{55 : (852) 3170 6606
FH : ir@lesso.com
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Forward-looking statements

This annual report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements include, without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The
words “believe”, “intend”, “expect”, “anticipate”, “forecast”, “estimate”, “predict”,
"“is confident”, “has confidence"” and similar expressions are also intended to represent
forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts.
Rather, the forward-looking statements are based on the current beliefs, assumptions,
expectations, estimates and projections of the directors and management of China
Lesso about the business, industry and markets in which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and
are subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the
Company's control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could
differ materially from those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking
statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only
the views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this annual
report only. The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-
looking statements to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of
this annual report.
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LESSO Hx¥8

Unit 3, 12th Floor, Tower 2, South Seas Centre, 75 Mody Road
Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BBNEERDIERIPE B 7S REROE 12183 E

L (852) 2712 8405

(852) 2714 7022

L1 www.lesso.com

@ This annual report is printed on Elemental Chlorine Free (ECF) paper.
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